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Definition
s

2013

A A unit or  
A linked unit

An Arrowhead linked unit comprising one ordinary 
share linked to one Arrowhead A debenture

Arrowhead Arrowhead Properties Limited, a PLS company listed 
on the JSE

B B unit or  
B linked unit

An Arrowhead linked unit comprising one ordinary 
share linked to one Arrowhead B debenture

Board Board of directors

C CEO Chief executive officer

CFO Chief financial officer

CGT Capital Gains Tax

CIPC Companies and Intellectual Property Commission

Combined unit Collectively one A unit and one B unit

Companies Act Companies Act, 2008 as amended

Company Arrowhead

COO Chief operating officer

CSDP Central Securities Depository Participant

E Executive CEO, CFO and COO

G Gearing Loans from Standard Bank of South Africa Ltd

GLA Gross lettable area
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Definition
s

2013

I IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

Indite Indite Properties Ltd.

IT Information technology

J JHI Topeka Trading 4 (Pty) Ltd, trading as JHI

JSE JSE Limited

M m2 Square metre

P PLS Property Loan Stock

R REIT Real Estate Investment Trust

S SENS Stock Exchange News Service of the JSE

Share or  
ordinary share

A no par value share in the capital of the company

Strate Strate is a licensed Central Securities Depository 
for the electronic settlement of financial 
instruments in South Africa

U Unitholders or 
linked unitholders

Holders of A units and/or B units
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Arrowhead was formed 
in September 2011 
and debuted in the 
Real Estate Sector on 
the JSE in December 
2011 as an internally 
managed PLS 
company.
Arrowhead owns a diverse portfolio of retail, 
commercial and industrial properties in “secondary” 
locations throughout South Africa. Its main focus 
is to pay increasing income returns to investors.

Arrowhead has grown its property portfolio 
significantly over the last two years and has 
diligently adhered to its stated objective of 
only making acquisitions that will enhance the 
distributions paid by the company.

As set out in its SENS announcement released on 16 
October 2013, Arrowhead has recently concluded the 
acquisition of a portfolio of residential properties 
servicing the affordable housing market segment. 
Management has identified residential property 
as an opportunity which could offer significant 
growth and competitive advantage to the company, 
and it is consistent with Arrowhead’s strategy of 
only making acquisitions that grow distributions. 
The announcement has been exceptionally well 
received by the company’s stakeholders.

Arrowhead pays its annual net income to its 
unitholders in the form of quarterly distributions.

The Arrowhead A and B unit structure caters for 
investors with different risk and reward appetites.
The A unit is aimed at risk averse investors, 
earning distributions of 15 cents or 50% of the 
distributable income per quarter, whichever is the 
greater, and the B units for investors with a 
greater appetite for risk, earning the balance. 

Arrowhead expects the A and the B units to share in 
the distributions in equal proportions during the 
financial year ended 30 September 2014.

Once the distribution per A unit is equal to or 
greater than 30 cents for the fourth consecutive 
quarter, the B units will convert to A units.

Growing income returns are achieved 
through:
 ■ Escalating rentals;

 ■ Satisfactory renewal of leases;

 ■ Renting of vacant space;

 ■ Managing and reducing, where possible, costs 
and;

 ■ Acquiring revenue enhancing properties.

Secondary properties bring with them additional 
risk and this is managed by having a growing 
portfolio, as diversified as possible in terms of 
number of properties, spread of tenants, spread 
of locations throughout South Africa and a spread 
of retail, office, industrial and now residential 
properties.

Interest rates are fixed for 5 years on drawdown 
on the majority of Arrowhead’s debt.

Arrowhead has an active investor relations 
programme and adheres to best practice corporate 
governance.

Assets are managed internally by Arrowhead’s 
executive and asset managers with property 
management provided by JHI.

Arrowhead converted to a REIT with effect from 1 
October 2013, in line with the rest of the listed 
property sector’s conversion to REITs. The change 
from a PLS to a REIT will not change either the 
operations or the strategy of the company and 
will not effect its distributable earnings. The 
benefits of conversion include certainty that the 
net property income of the REIT is not subject to 
tax and that surpluses on the disposal of property 
are not subject to capital gains tax. In turn this 
means Arrowhead no longer needs to provide for 
deferred tax. The distribution by the REIT will be 
by way of a dividend (not interest). The dividend 
will be treated as property income in the hands 
of Arrowhead’s investors and will not qualify as 
interest earned. 
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Objectives of Arrowhead for the year ended 30 September 2013

Objectives Results

Distribution of 110.64 cents per combined A and B 
unit, as set out in prospects for the coming year 
in Arrowhead’s 2012 integrated report.

Achieved distribution of 113,01 cents per combined. A 
and B unit, a growth of 12,36% over the 100,58 cents 
per unit distributed in 2012.

Grow the asset property portfolio by 30%. Properties acquired amounted to R723 million, an 
increase of 32%. This target was achieved in early 
May 2013.

Achieve a market capitalisation of R3 billion. With the market price of both A and B units having been 
reduced, the market capitalisation at 30 September 
2013 was R2.8 billion. 

Total return for combined A and B unit to be better 
than the market average.

Market achieved 10.28% and Arrowhead achieved 19%.

Achieve loan to value of between 35% and 40%. Loan to value at 30 September 2013 was 23%. Arrowhead 
financed additional property assets with a larger 
share of equity in relation to bank borrowings.
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Timeline

Di�t�ibuti�n AWA 15c & AWB 12,10c

13 FEB 2013

Inte�im Re�ult� - Di�t�ibuti�n AWA 15c & AWB 13,04c

8 May 2013

ACQUIRED 1 MAR 2013

REIT �tatu� APPROVED fo� A����head

P��po�ed acqui�iti�n �f R500m �e�idential po�tf�li�

Po�tf�li� acqui�ed f��m ABSA fo� R40,5m

Di�t�ibuti�n AWA 15c & AWB 14,33c

Di�t�ibuti�n AWA 15c & AWB 13,54c
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1  JUN 2013

,

,

,

CHARITABLE
TRUST LAUNCHED

24 APR 2013

R250m
raised in hea�ily

��e�-�ub�c�ibed
b��k build

6 mar 2013
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Arrowhead unitholders
Arrowhead was listed under the “Real Estate – Real Estate Holdings and Development” sector on the JSE as 
a PLS company during the period under review. With effect from 1 October 2013 it was listed under the same 
sector as a REIT. 
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Arrowhead “A” Units - From 1 October 2012 to 30 September 2013

Total volume 126 674 893        Total Value R898 509 996
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A Units

Size of holdings Number of  
unitholdERS

% of total  
unitholdERs

Number  
of units

% of units  
in issue

1 - 1000 units 9 781 74,91 1 680 624 0,85

1001 - 10 000 units 2 156 16,52 8 559 557 4,34

10 001 - 100 000 units 914 7,00 27 695 290 14,05

100 001 - 1 000 000 units 169 1,29 48 201 185 24,45

1 000 001 units and over 37 0,28 110 997 227 56,31

Total 13 057 100,00 197 133 883 100,00

DISTRIBUTION OF UNITHOLDERS Number of 
UnitholdERS

% of Total 
UnitholdERS

Number  
of Units

% of Units  
in Issue

Collective Investement Schemes 92 0,70 73 764 399 37,42

Retail Unitholders 10 924 83,64 32 178 649 16,32

Stockbrokers & Nominees 40 0,31 18 939 427 9,61

Trusts 1 268 9,71 18 757 648 9,52

Retirement Benefit Funds 70 0,54 16 523 403 8,38

Organs of State 3 0,02 11 245 027 5,70

Private Companies 237 1,82 7 473 481 3,79

Assurance Companies 18 0,14 3 807 572 1,93

Foundations & Charitable Funds 104 0,80 3 440 195 1,75

Custodians 37 0,28 3 122 538 1,58

Close Corporations 155 1,19 1 838 446 0,93

Scrip Lending 7 0,05 1 482 974 0,75

Treasury 1 0,01 1 451 151 0,74

Medical Aid Funds 11 0,08 918 762 0,47

Public Companies 5 0,04 893 063 0,45

Investment Partnerships 66 0,51 602 472 0,31

Managed Funds 5 0,04 407 321 0,21

Hedge Funds 2 0,02 199 113 0,10

Public Entities 1 0,01 79 725 0,04

Insurance Companies 2 0,02 7 671 0,00

Unclaimed Scrip 9 0,07 846 0,00

Total 13 057 100,00 *197 133 883 100,00

* Excluded 9 million units issued to the Arrowhead Charitable Trust
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Unitholder type Number of 
unitholdERS

% of total 
unitholdERS

Number  
of units

% of units  
in issue

Non-public unitholders 6 0,05  5 370 422 2,72

- Directors and associates 
(Direct holding)

4 5 322 318 2,70

- Directors and associates 
(Indirect holding)

2 48 104 0,02

Public unitholders 13 051 99,95 191 763 461 97,28

Total 13 057 100,00 197 133 883 100,00

Beneficial unitholders with a holding  
greater than 5% of the units in issue

TOTAL 
UNITHOLDING

% of units  
in issue

Nedbank Group 22 174 264 11,25

Total 22 174 264 11,25

Fund managers with a holding 
greater than 5% of the units in issue

TOTAL 
UNITHOLDING

% of units  
in issue

Investec Asset Management 17 253 546 8,75

Foord Asset Management 16 980 348 8,61

Grindrod Asset Management 10 050 417 5,10

Total 44 284 311 22,46

UNIT PRICE PERFORMANCE R

Opening price 01 October 2012 6,50

Closing price 30 September 2013 6,91

High for the period 8,25

Low for the period 6,30

Number of units in issue 197 133 883

Volume traded during period 126 674 893

Ratio of volume traded to units in issue (%) 64,26
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B Units

Size of holdings Number of 
unitholdERS

% of total 
unitholdERS

Number  
of units

% of units  
in issue

1 - 1000 units 9 723 72,37 1 687 957 0,86

1001 - 10 000 units 2 501 18,62 10 519 387 5,34

10 001 - 100 000 units 1 029 7,66 29 357 629 14,89

100 001 - 1 000 000 units 144 1,07 39 535 947 20,06

1 000 001 units and over 38 0,28 116 032 963 58,85

Total 13 435 100,00 197 133 883 100,00  

DISTRIBUTION OF UNITHOLDERS Number of 
UnitholdERS

% of Total 
UnitholdERS

Number  
of Units

% of Units  
in Issue

Collective Investement Schemes 89 0,66 77 151 287 39,14

Retail Linked Unitholders 11 333 84,35 36 831 758 18,68

Retirement Benefit Funds 75 0,56 21 624 085 10,97

Private Companies 248 1,85 16 513 307 8,38

Trusts 1 235 9,19 14 559 494 7,39

Organs of State 17 0,13 11 026 268 5,59

Assurance Companies 28 0,21 4 754 685 2,41

Stockbrokers & Nominees 99 0,74 4 179 632 2,12

Foundations & Charitable Funds 1 0,01 2 987 319 1,52

Custodians 37 0,28 1 886 000 0,96

Treasury 2 0,01 1 451 151 0,74

Public Companies 5 0,04 1 143 329 0,58

Close Corporations 165 1,23 1 053 048 0,53

Medical Aid Funds 10 0,07 567 342 0,29

Investment Partherships 64 0,48 461 864 0,23

Managed Funds 7 0,05 400 308 0,20

Scrip Lending 7 0,05 324 881 0,16

Hedge Funds 2 0,01 209 608 0,11

Insurance Companies 2 0,01 7 671 0,00

Unclaimed Scrip 9 0,07 846 0,00

Total 13 435 100,00 *197 133 883 100,00 

* Excluded 9 million units issued to the Arrowhead Charitable Trust
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Unitholder type Number of 
unitholdERS

% of total 
unitholdERS

Number  
of units

% of units  
in issue

Non-public unitholders 7 0,05 6 084 126 3,09

- Directors and associates 
(Direct holding)

5 6 082 022 3,09

- Directors and associates 
(Indirect holding)

2 2 104 0,00

Public unitholders 13 428 99,95 191 049 757 96,91

Total 13 435 100,0 197 133 883 100,0

Beneficial unitholders with a holding  
greater than 5% of the units in issue

Total  
unitholding

% of units  
in issue

Investec 16 873 847 8,56

Nedbank Group 16 525 064 8,38

Total 33 398 911 16,94

Fund managers with a holding  
greater than 5% of the units in issue

Total  
unitholding

% of units  
in issue

Investec Asset Management 30 257 755 15,35

Public Investment Corporation 11 026 268 5,59

Foord Asset Management 10 620 024 5,39

Total 51 904 047 26,33

UNIT PRICE PERFORMANCE R

Opening price 01 October 2012 5,85

Closing price 30 September 2013 6,66

High for the period 8,25

Low for the period 5,40

Number of units in issue 197 133 883

Volume traded during period 71 589 796

Ratio of volume traded to units in issue (%) 36,32
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Non-public breakdown - A Units

Non-public UNITHOLDERS NUMBER Unitholding

Directors and associates (indirect holding) 2 48 104

Directors and associates (direct holding) 4 5 322 318

Directors and Associates (Indirect holding) Indirect beneficial

S Noik 1 1 000

G Leissner 1 47 104

2 48 104

Directors and Associates (Direct Holding) Direct beneficial

M Kaplan 1 1 893 302

G Leissner 1 1 722 063

I Suleman 1 1 660 953

M Nell 1 46 000

4 5 322 318
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Non-public breakdown - B Units

Non-public UNITHOLDERS NUMBER Unitholding

Directors and associates (direct holding) 5 6 082 022

Directors and associates (indirect holding) 2 2 104

Directors and Associates (Indirect Holding) Indirect Beneficial

S Noik 1 1 000

G Leissner 1 1 104

2 2 104

Directors and Associates (Direct Holding) Direct Beneficial

M Kaplan 1 2 538 006

G Leissner 1 1 722 063

I Suleman 1 1 660 953

S Noik 1 70 000

M Nel 1 91 000

5 6 082 022

Arrowhead Integrated Annual Report 2013 21



Im�aan Suleman
Executive. CFO. CA (SA), BCom, (Hons) Acc

Imraan (41) is a Chartered Accountant. He joined Java Capital in 2005 from one of the big four audit firms for whom he had worked in both South Africa and the UK. Imraan advised clients on a wide range of transactions including listings, mergers and acquisitions, capital raisings and empowerment transactions.

Ma�k Kaplan
Executive. COO. BBusSc, 
Finance (Hons)

Mark (33) was previously 
managing director of 
Aengus Property Holdings, 
which controlled a 
portfolio of assets valued 
in excess of R300m. Mark 
was involved in various 
entrepreneurial ventures 
before joining Aengus in 
2007.

Sel�yn N�ik
Independent non-executive. CA (SA)

Selwyn (66) is a chartered accountant and was an executive director of Reichmans Limited and after its acquisition by Investec Limited, he assumed the position of group secretary of Investec, a position he held for thirteen years until his retirement in 2007. 

Ge�ald Lei��ne�
Executive.

 CEO. CA (S
A)

Gerald (71)
 is a Char

tered 

Accountant
. He was 

previously
 CEO of Ap

exHi and 

has 49 yea
rs’ experi

ence in 

real estat
e. He serv

ed as a 

director o
f the Joha

nnesburg 

Housing Co
mpany and 

the 

Housing De
velopment 

Agency 

and helped
 found the

 Central 

Johannesbu
rg Partner

ship in 

the 1980s.

Ma�he� Nell
Independent non-executive. BSc (Building Science), MSC (Town and Regional Planning)

Matthew (63) has over 30 years’ experience in urban and housing development and manages a development consultancy, Shisaka Development Management Services.
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Im�aan Suleman
Executive. CFO. CA (SA), BCom, (Hons) Acc

Imraan (41) is a Chartered Accountant. He joined Java Capital in 2005 from one of the big four audit firms for whom he had worked in both South Africa and the UK. Imraan advised clients on a wide range of transactions including listings, mergers and acquisitions, capital raisings and empowerment transactions.

Ma�k Kaplan
Executive. COO. BBusSc, 
Finance (Hons)

Mark (33) was previously 
managing director of 
Aengus Property Holdings, 
which controlled a 
portfolio of assets valued 
in excess of R300m. Mark 
was involved in various 
entrepreneurial ventures 
before joining Aengus in 
2007.

Sel�yn N�ik
Independent non-executive. CA (SA)

Selwyn (66) is a chartered accountant and was an executive director of Reichmans Limited and after its acquisition by Investec Limited, he assumed the position of group secretary of Investec, a position he held for thirteen years until his retirement in 2007. 
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Vicki Turner

LEGAL ADVISOR

Vicki has been appointed in a legal capacity to 
assist with Arrowhead’s acquisition and disposal 
of property assets, and to mitigate legal risk, as 
and when it arises.

Max Machanik 

National asset manager

Max has been tasked with reducing vacancies and 
building brand awareness through the development 
and implementation of internal and external 
leasing strategies. This position demands use of 
networking skills whilst identifying tenants to 
occupy Arrowhead’s vacant space, working nationally 
with brokers and property managers alike. 

David Mayers

National asset manager

David’s responsibility is to maximise the 
performance of the portfolio through ensuring 
efficiencies at national level, ranging from 
debt management to lease negotiations, to ensure 
income optimisation. David streamlines work and 
information flows between Arrowhead and its 
contractors.

LEGAL ADVISOR & asset managers
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Java Capital
Java Capital provides a complete range of 
financial, commercial and legal advisory and 
transaction execution services. It is licensed as 
a sponsor of companies listed on the JSE and as 
a designated advisor to the JSE’s AltX Exchange. 

JHI 
JHI is an independent property services company 
delivering comprehensive service offerings to a 
wide client base. 

Grant Thornton
Arrowhead’s auditors PKF Jhb Incorporated merged 
with Grant Thornton South Africa during the current 
financial year. Grant Thornton South Africa is 
part of one of the world’s leading audit, tax and 
advisory firms which help dynamic organisations 
unlock their potential for growth by providing 
meaningful, actionable advice through a broad 
range of services.

Standard Bank
Standard Bank has a 150-year history. The bank 
currently operates in 18 countries on the African 
continent, including South Africa, as well as in 
other selected emerging markets. 

Computershare
Computershare manages over two million shareholder 
accounts, providing share registry and custodial 
services, employee share plan management and 
investor relations for over 80% of the companies 
listed on the JSE. Computershare is a CSDP 
licensed  under Strate, and provides custodial 
services for private and institutional investors.

Probity
Probity, a company secretarial practice, provides 
the board as a whole and directors individually with 
detailed guidance as to how their responsibilities 
should be properly discharged in the best interest 
of the company. The company secretary provides a 
central source of guidance and advice to the board 
and within the company, on matters of ethics and 
good corporate governance.

Service providers
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Arrowhead’s main 
objective is to increase 
distributions to its 
unitholders. The extent 
to which this has 
been achieved in this 
second year since the 
company was listed on 
the JSE, in December 
2011, is reflected in 
this integrated annual 
report.
Distributable income for the year to 30 September 
2013 was 113,01 cents per combined A and B unit, 
a 12,36% increase over the 100,58 cents achieved 
in 2012. This level of growth, as well as the 19% 
total return on the combined unit, means Arrowhead 
has outperformed the majority of its peers for 
this past year. The average total return in the 
property sector for the year was 10%.

This growth has been achieved through a combination 
of growing the income from the property portfolio 
owned by Arrowhead at the end of last year, and 
a strict control of costs within the property 
portfolio. In addition, the properties acquired 
in the previous financial year were, in terms of 
Arrowhead’s strategy, all revenue enhancing. These 
properties added to the growth in this year’s 
distributions. The portfolio has increased this 
year by 32% and was valued at 30 September 2013 
at R3,1 billion. The benefit of these acquisitions 
are reflected partly this year, but the full impact 
will be reported on in the 2014 financial year.

The first six months of this financial year saw 
Arrowhead’s unit price rise in line with the 
property sector’s expectations of low and stable 
long term interest rates. The rise in long-term 
interest rates in May 2013, following possible 
financial policy changes announced by the US 

Federal Reserve, led to a sharp fall in property 
unit prices across the sector. Although prices 
have recovered to some extent and interest rate 
expectations appear to be less volatile, Arrowhead 
believes the cost of both the equity and loan 
capital required to fund growth will be higher than 
last year. To maintain its strategy of purchasing 
only revenue-enhancing assets, properties acquired 
in the coming year will have to be at higher yields 
than those acquired since listing.

Arrowhead’s entry into the residential property 
market, with the purchase of a R406 million 
portfolio in Johannesburg is exciting. The 
acquisition of residential property will be 
governed by the same criteria Arrowhead uses for 
all of its acquisitions, namely, only assets which 
are revenue-enhancing will be acquired.

Arrowhead converted to a REIT on 1 October 2013. 
This change will in no way alter the way in which 
Arrowhead operates.

During the past year, Arrowhead’s management has 
shown both initiative and resilience at a time 
when investment markets and the cost of equity 
and debt have been far more volatile than in the 
previous year. The results for the year and the 
expected growth for the year to 30 September 2014 
reflect the quality of the management team and I 
want to thank them for their efforts in achieving 
these results.

I would like to again extend my thanks and 
appreciation to my fellow board members for their 
positive involvement and commitment to Arrowhead 
and I look forward to working with the board and 
management to achieve increasing distributions for 
our investors in the coming years.

______________________________

Taffy Adler 
13 November 2013
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Financial performance for the year ended 30 September  2013
The year ended 30 September 2013 marks Arrowhead’s second year as a listed entity and the last as a property 
loan stock company. Arrowhead has become a REIT with effect from 1 October 2013.

The distribution per combined unit of 113,01 cents equates to an increase of 12,36% on the previous year. 
Arrowhead paid an annual distribution of 100,58 cents per combined unit for the year ended 30 September 2012, 
and had forecast 10% distribution growth per combined unit for the year ended 30 September 2013. 

2013 2012

R’000 R’000

Revenue 423 246 259 735 

Property expenses (147 464) (92 567)

Net property income 275 781 167 167 

Administrative and corporate costs (14 928) (14 310)

Finance charges (54 810) (50 109)

Finance income 17 525 25 784 

Distributable income 223 567 128 531 

Property expenses as a percentage of revenue 35% 36%

2013 2012

Distributable earnings paid to Redefine for the months of 
October and November 2011

- 21 221

Distribution for the quarter/period ended 31 December 48 780 7 085

Distribution for the quarter ended 31 March 55 341 21 614

Distribution for the quarter ended 30 June 58 910 34 229

Distribution for the quarter ended 30 September 60 536 44 382

223 567 128 531

2013 2012

CENTS PER UNIT CENTS PER UNIT

Distribution for the quarter/period ended 31 December 27.10 8.09

Distribution for the quarter ended 31 March 28.04 24.68

Distribution for the quarter ended 30 June 28.54 25.03

Distribution for the quarter ended 30 September 29.33 26.02

113.01 *83.82

* Annualised distribution equals 100,58 each.
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Revenue

2013 2012

R’000 R’000

Rental 325 519 205 456

Recoveries - expenditure recovered from tenants 97 727 54 279

423 246 259 735

This year, revenue has increased substantially as the full effect of the acquisitions concluded during the 
previous financial year, together with the partial impact of acquisitions concluded during this year, were 
included.

Rentals from government tenants have reduced marginally as a percentage of total revenue from the prior 
year, as the properties acquired in the financial year have been weighted towards private sector tenants. 
Significant progress has been made in converting monthly tenancies with government into leases of between 
12 and 24 months. Arrowhead remains committed to increasing its exposure to government as a tenant.

Arrowhead has incorporated Indite as a wholly owned subsidiary, whose focus will be to acquire properties 
that are tenanted by government and into which Arrowhead’s existing government tenanted properties will be 
transferred. Indite will be externally managed by a 100% black-owned asset manager, Indite Asset Management, 
which should enable Indite to enter into longer term leases with government. The asset manager will earn 
a fee of 0,5% of the fair market value of the properties owned by Indite (the properties currently owned 
by Arrowhead, which will be transferred to Indite, will be excluded from this calculation). A circular to 
unitholders to approve the asset management agreement was posted on 30 October 2013. 

Vacancies within the portfolio have decreased to 9%, which is primarily due to the acquisition of properties 
with an average occupancy rate of 98%.

The majority of the vacancies are in the commercial sector where the letting of office space has proved 
challenging. While there has been a noticeable increase in enquiries for vacant office space, it is anticipated 
that significant up take of space will only occur once the economy starts to improve. Approximately 64% of 
the 112 000m2 of the GLA which expired during the year was renewed, and tenants occupying a further 21 000m2 
or 4% of the GLA have extended their leases on a monthly basis.

Average rental escalations of approximately 8% have been achieved across the portfolio.

The internalisation of electricity management has been challenging, yet rewarding. During the first five 
months of the previous financial year, a third party administered the electricity management and collection, 
with Arrowhead having internalised this function for the remainder of that financial year. This internal 
electricity management and collection contributed to increased revenue for the year. Arrowhead is achieving 
an over-recovery of 4% as opposed to an under-recovery previously. There is scope to improve this margin at 
no additional cost to tenants. The benefit is derived from acquiring electricity at bulk supply rates and 
supplying at the prevailing retail rate.
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The largest leases within the portfolio

Building name Tenant name % of  
Rent

Monthly 
Rent

Lease 
Expiry

% R’000

Selby Integrated Processing Solutions (Pty) Ltd 4 994 31/10/2016

North-End The Government of South Africa 3 801 31/10/2014

Crownwood The Gauteng Provincial Department of Education 2 660 30/09/2019

Media Shop The Mediashop (Pty) Ltd 2 491 30/04/2017

Kwela Kwela Logistics (Pty) Ltd 2 451 30/04/2017

115 Paul Kruger Pretoria Society of Advocates 2 420 30/11/2017

Waterworld Combined Motor Holdings Ltd 1 399 31/08/2015

Bridge on Bond The Independent Institute of Education (Pty) Ltd 1 394 31/08/2014

Dept of Forestry The Government of the Republic of SA 1 346 30/06/2014

Mae West The Government of the Republic of SA 1 336 31/08/2015

ABSA Cash Centre ABSA Bank Limited 1 330 30/11/2016

Edufin Gauteng Provincial Government 1 329 30/06/2014

Business Centre Bryanston Business Centre (Pty) Ltd 1 321 31/03/2016

Wilcon House National Prosecuting Authority 1 319 31/03/2016

Bridge on Bond ACA Limited 1 289 30/09/2017

Kolbenco Kolbenco (Pty) Ltd 1 269 30/09/2020

SAPS Worcester The Government of the Republic of South Africa 1 269 31/07/2011

Terminus Shoprite Checkers (Pty) Ltd 1 235 30/04/2020

Premier Foods Premier Foods Ltd 1 224 31/12/2017

135 PMB Provincial Government of Kwazulu-Natal 1 221 31/03/2016

Pentagraph Universal Healthcare Administrators 1 219 31/10/2015

McCarthy Centre McCarthy Limited 1 209 31/10/2015

Virgin Active 
Benoni

Virgin Active S.A (Pty) Ltd 1 208 28/02/2021

101 Dorp The Government of the Republic of South Africa 1 206 30/09/2011

FB Motors Department of Public Works 1 201 30/06/2015
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Top 10 commercial leases

Tenant name Start date Expiry date Lettable 
area

MONTHLY 
RENTAL

rate/m2

m2 R’000 R

Integrated Processing Solutions (Pty) Ltd 01/10/2011 31/10/2016 12 700 994 78

The Government of South Africa 01/05/2013 31/10/2014 7 018 801 114

The Gauteng Provincial Department of 
Education

01/10/2009 30/09/2019 5 830 660 113

The Mediashop (Pty) Ltd 01/11/2008 30/04/2017 2 522 491 195

Pretoria Society of Advocates 01/11/2008 30/11/2017 3 928 420 107

The Government of the Republic of SA 01/07/2013 30/06/2014 3 790 346 91

The Government of the Republic of SA 01/09/2013 31/08/2015 2 922 336 115

ABSA Bank Limited 01/12/2001 30/11/2016 2 359 330 139

Gauteng Provincial Government 01/07/2013 30/06/2014 3 500 329 94

Bryanston Business Centre (Pty) Ltd 01/04/2012 31/03/2016 2 926 321 110

Top 10 industrial leases

Tenant name Start date Expiry date Lettable 
area

Monthly 
Rental

rate/m2

m2 R’000 R

Kwela Logistics (Pty) Ltd 01/05/2007 30/04/2017 15 450 451 29

Premier Foods Ltd 01/01/2013 31/12/2017 5 850 224 38

Transwire, a division of ACTOM (Pty) Ltd 01/05/2013 30/04/2023 6 500 179 27

Vital Distribution Solution (Pty) Ltd 01/06/2010 31/01/2014 3 325 179 53

Cosamo (Pty) Ltd 01/11/2011 31/10/2016 2 846 111 39

Pioneer Foods (Pty) Ltd 01/12/2011 30/11/2014 2 500 102 41

Flowcrete SA (Pty) Ltd 01/09/2013 31/08/2019 2 178 97 44

ABSA Bank Limited 01/02/2011 31/01/2016 3 411 97 28

3K Mattress Innovations CC 01/03/2011 28/02/2014 5 967 95 15

Swift Box Manufacturing CC 01/01/2008 30/11/2013 2 700 88 32

Arrowhead Integrated Annual Report 201334



Retail       Indu�t�ial       C�mme�cial

Lea�e e
pi�
y p��file

       by �
e�enue

R
4 000 000

3 500 000

3 000 000

2 500 000

2 000 000

1 500 000

1 000 000

500 000

0

MONTHLY 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 BEYOND

5% 4% 24% 20% 22% 11% 7% 7%

Lea�e e
pi�
y p��file

       by G
LA

m2

4 500 000

4 000 000

3 500 000

3 000 000

2 500 000

2 000 000

1 500 000

1 000 000

500 000

0

MONTHLY 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 BEYOND

4% 2% 22% 17% 19% 12% 7% 9%

GAUTENG

NORTH WEST

MPUMALANGA

LIMPOPO

KWAZULU NATAL

NORTHERN CAPE & FREE-STATE

WESTERN CAPE

EASTERN CAPE

T�tal �ental

pe� �egi�
n

14%

16%

7%
36%

6%

9%

7%
5%

Arrowhead Integrated Annual Report 2013 35



Top 10 retail leases

Tenant name Start date Expiry date Lettable 
area

MONTHLY 
RENTAL

rate/m2

m2 R’000 R

Combined Motor Holdings Ltd 01/09/2005 31/08/2015 6 524 399 61

The Independent Institute of Education (Pty) 
Ltd

01/09/2007 31/08/2014 3 350 394 117

ACA Limited 01/10/2007 30/09/2017 2 850 289 101

Shoprite Checkers (Pty) Ltd 01/05/2010 30/04/2020 3 152 235 74

McCarthy Limited 01/11/2005 31/10/2015 5 935 209 35

Virgin Active S.A (Pty) Ltd 01/03/2011 28/02/2021 3 154 208 65

Mr Price Group Limited 01/09/2012 31/08/2017 1 429 195 136

ABSA Bank Limited 01/12/2011 30/11/2013 2 030 195 96

ABSA Bank Limited 01/09/2012 31/08/2017 2 053 182 89

Orester Trading CC 02/04/2009 31/01/2018 2 236 178 79

Tenant grading by revenue

A B C Total

Percentage of total 45 23 32 100

There are currently 577 tenants graded as C. 
A grade - Large national tenants, large listed tenants, government and major franchisees. 
B grade - National tenants, listed tenants, franchisees, medium to large professional firms. 
C grade - Tenants other than A grade and B grade.

Property expenses

2013 % of total 2012 % of total

R’000 % R’000 %

Municipal expenses 101 426 69 63 294 68

Property management 14 860 10 8 735 10

Security 7 148 5 4 803 5

Repairs and maintenance 3 443 2 2 987 3

Letting commission 3 222 2 1 141 1

Cleaning 3 150 2 2 392 3

Insurance 2 269 2 1 752 2

Other 11 942 8 7 460 8

Total 147 464 100 92 567 100
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Municipal expenses have increased in line with the enlarged portfolio, and the increased electricity expense 
resulting from the migration to an internally managed electricity administration function. The recovery 
of municipal expenses has increased to 87% (2012:79%) as a result of the implementation of the internal 
electricity administration. This margin will improve as efficiencies take effect.

Arrowhead recovered 43% of municipal rates in 2013 (2012:47%). This ratio will decrease over time as the 
company moves from “net” leases to “gross” leases where the rates recoveries are incorporated into the 
rental and the exposure to government tenants, the majority of which do not contribute to rates expenses.

The majority of water, sewer and waste expenses were recovered.

All other property related expenditure has increased in line with the enlarged property portfolio. The 
increased letting commissions result from the renewal of a number of government leases that had expired in 
previous years where tenants remained in occupation on a month to month basis.

Admin expenses

2013 % of Total 2012 % of Total

R’000 % R’000 %

Salaries (excluding sign on bonuses) 9 000 60 8 872 62

Professional service fees 2 888 19 3 078 22

Other 3 040 21 2 359 16

Total 14 928 100 14 310 100

Finance income

2013 % of Total 2012 % of Total

R’000 % R’000 %

Interest received from tenants 440 2 - -

Antecedent interest 5 929 34 23 585 91

Interest on loan units 4 306 25 679 3

Interest on cash balances 1 663 9 1 520 6

Interest from Charitable Trust 5 187 30 - -

Total 17 525 100 25 784 100

Antecedent interest is recognised in respect of units issued to fund the acquisition of properties where the 
units are issued prior to the acquisition becoming effective.

Interest on loan units is in respect of loans made to participants of the Arrowhead Unit Purchase Trust, and 
the loans incur interest at the company’s rate of borrowings.

The interest on the loan to the Arrowhead Charitable Trust is equivalent to the distributions accruing to 
the units subscribed for by the Trust.
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Term facilities

Maturity Interest Rate Capital

% R’000

September 2016 9,37 - fixed 387 284

September 2016 7,40 - variable 92 715

September 2017 7,20 - variable 71 762

March 2018 7,25 - variable 167 836

Total Exposure 719 598

Arrowhead has, in October 2013, entered into interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to fluctuations in 
interest rates as follows:

 ■ an interest rate swap over R189m until 31 May 2018; and

 ■ an interest rate swap over R72m until 31 May 2018.

The loans of R719 million (2012: R615 million) measured against investment properties valued at carrying 
value of R3,1 billion (2012: R2,2 billion) represents a loan to value of 23% (2012: 28%). R648 284 437 of 
the total R719 598 532 is fixed which equates to 90% of the total borrowings. Arrowhead’s target loan to 
value is between 35% to 40% and it is anticipated that once the current acquisition pipeline is concluded 
it will be at approximately 33% loan to value.

In terms of Arrowhead’s treasury function, excess funds are placed in an access facility to reduce the 
overall interest charge.

The effective interest rate for the year ended 30 September 2013 was 8,17%.

Extracts from the balance sheet

30 September 
2013

30 September 
2012

R’000 R’000

ASSETS

Non-current assets 3 296 199 2 228 916

Investment property 3 101 410 2 222 209

Property plant and equipment 494 833

Loans to participants of the unit purchase trust 52 606 5 873

Arrowhead Charitable Trust 134 010 -

Derivative instrument 7 678 -

Current assets 43 887 216 695

Trade and other receivables 18 503 26 559

Cash and cash equivalents 25 384 190 136
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30 September 
2013

30 September 
2012

R’000 R’000

Non - current assets held for sale 12 000 13 952

Total assets 3 352 087 2 459 563

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders interest   502 417 190 268

Non – current liabilities – debentures 2 023 087 1 460 144

Linked unit holders interest 2 525 504 1 650 413

Secured financial liabilities 718 058 445 697

Deferred taxation - 93 722

Current liabilities 108 524 269 730

Trade and other payables 47 988 57 853

Secured financial liabilities - 167 494

Unit holders for distribution 60 535 44 382

Total equity and liabilities 3 352 087 2 459 563

Investment properties 
Arrowhead has completed the acquisition of R723 million worth of property during this financial year while 
revaluations of existing properties showed increases of R144 million.

A third of the property portfolio is valued externally every year with the balance being valued by the 
executive directors. The independent valuation this year was carried out by JHI.
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Property acquisitions
ACQUISITION DATE PROPERTY NAME ADDRESS SECTOR  GLA  PURCHASE PRICE 

m2 R
04-Oct-12 Selby 106 Booyens Road, Johannesburg Retail  16 346  112 298 441 

04-Oct-12 Kwela Logistics 1 Range Road, Cape Town Industrial  15 450  41 000 000 

30-Nov-12 Bridge on Bond Cnr of Brahm Fischer Drive & Bond Street, Ferndale Commercial  12 243  111 792 000 

10-Dec-12 The District 8 Kikuyu Road, Sunninghill Commercial  3 768  51 450 000 

01-Mar-13 Crownwood Office Park 100 Northern Parkway, Ormonde Commercial  13 347  112 000 000 

01-Mar-13 Transforum Centre Portion 191 of Erf 272 JQ Farms, Rustenburg Retail  4 747  72 000 000 

12-Mar-13 Kolbenco Erf1599, Alrode Industrial  13 722  24 000 000 

22-May-13 The Media Shop 138 Kelvin drive, Sandton,2057 Commercial  2 522  47 403 563 

22-May-13 Wilcon House 24 Fabricia Road, Fabricia, Kimberley Commercial  2 659  23 000 000 

01-Jun-13 Waterworld 234 Malibongwe Drive, Northriding, Johannesburg Industrial  6 524  35 344 168 

21-Jun-13 Impala Centre Bethlehem and Fatima Bhayat Street, Rustenburg Retail  3 604  53 000 000 

15-Aug-13 ABSA Bank - Nigel Hendrik Verwoerd and 2nd Avenue, Nigel Retail  961  6 840 602 

15-Aug-13 ABSA Bank - Amanda Lea 3 Amanda Avenue, Lea Glen, Roodepoort Retail  3 411  9 592 895 

15-Aug-13 ABSA Bank - Heidelberg 42 Uerckermamn, Heidelberg Retail  777  6 711 371 
15-Aug-13 ABSA Bank - Gezina Ben Swaart & Voortrekker Drive, Gezina, Pretoria Industrial  2 053  17 355 132 

 723 788 172

Property disposals
SOLD DATE PROPERTY NAME ADDRESS SECTOR  GLA  DISPOSAL 

m2 R
15-Nov-12 Cadbury Wattle Avenue Industrial  14 510  9 658 000 

25-Apr-13 ABSA Goodwood N1 City, Cape Town Commercial  1 134  12 206 400 

27-Jun-13 Grotto Mews Grotto Road Commercial  320  2 579 000 
20-Sep-13 106 Mark Street 106 Mark Street Retail  1 386  1 707 905 

 26 151 305

Loans to participants of the unit purchase trust
Loans to the value of R53 million were made to participants of the unit purchase trust this year. The 
recipients include the executive directors and staff of Arrowhead and are used to subscribe for units in 
Arrowhead. The loans bear interest at the company’s effective rate of borrowings and are secured by the 
units subscribed for.

Arrowhead Charitable Trust
The loan made to the trust was to subscribe for Arrowhead units at market value. The loan bears interest 
equal to the distributions paid on the units subscribed for. Units will be sold by the trust, and the loan 
repaid, to create a capital base to be used by the trust to make donations to beneficiaries, which include 
underprivileged communities in areas where Arrowhead is invested.

Trade and other receivables
This includes trade receivables, deposits and payments in advance. The balance oustanding has decreased from 
the prior year as a result of concerted efforts to collect monies outstanding. R1,2 million has been written 
off this year and a further R2,9 million has been provided for. The combined amounts are 1% of revenue.
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Cash and equivalents
The decrease in cash and cash equivalents is due to the capital raising exercise concluded in September 
2012 to fund property acquisitions in respect of which the cash consideration payable was discharged after 
year end.

Non current assets held for sale
Offers have been received on certain buildings that are vacant. The buildings that are being held for sale 
represent a small portion of the portfolio.

Debentures
The increase resulted from the issue of linked units during the year. In line with Arrowhead converting to 
a REIT, debentures will be derecognised and will form part of equity.

Secured financial liabilities
This is the senior term funding from Standard Bank and has increased in line with the increase in investment 
properties. The short term portion appearing under current liabilities in 2012 has been refinanced will 
mature in March 2018.

Deferred taxation
An advantage of converting to a REIT is the tax certainty from an income perspective and the fact that the 
company will be exempt from paying capital gains tax. Accordingly deferred taxation has been derecognised 
this year.
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Property  
name

Address CITY/Town

ABSA Randburg 308 Oak Street Johannesburg 

Pentagraph Building 19 Tamback Street Johannesburg 

The Media Shop 138 Kelvin drive, Sandton, 2057 Johannesburg 

Motswedi House 495 Summit Road Johannesburg 

Rivonia Boulevard 353 Rivonia Boulevard Johannesburg 

Standard Bank Blackheath 288 Weltevreden Road Johannesburg 

101 Dorp Street 101 Dorp Street Polokwane  

Berolina 107 Schoeman Street Polokwane  

Empire Place 106 Hans van Rensburg Street Polokwane  

F B Motors 105 & 107 Hans van Rensburg Street Polokwane  

Mae West Building 92 Bok Street Polokwane  

Middelburg SAPS 37 SADC Vos Street Middleburg  

Business centre 8 Gemsbok Road, Rivonia Johannesburg 

127 Bethlehem Street 127 Bethlehem Street Rustenburg 

Emerson 2A Naivasha Road, Sunninghill Johannesburg 

Galileo House Ernest Oppenheimer Avenue, Bruma Johannesburg 

Oakhill Roos Street, Fourways Johannesburg 

115 Paul Kruger 115 Paul Kruger Street, Pretoria Pretoria  

Nu Payment Solutions 2 Kingfisher Crescent, Alberton Johannesburg 

La Rocca Corner Main Street and Petunia Street, Bryanston Johannesburg 

The District 8 Kikuyu Road, Sunninghill Johannesburg 

Selby 106 Booyens Road, Johannesburg Johannesburg 

Bridge on Bond Corner of Brahm Fischer Drive and Bond Street, Ferndale Johannesburg 

Crownwood Office Park 100 Northern Parkway, Ormonde Johannesburg 

De Goede Hoop Park 17 Strand Street Cape Town 

Parc Du Bel 19 Strand Street Cape Town 

Philippi Court Corner New Eisleben & Lansdown Roads Cape Town 

SAPS Mitchell's Plain Alpha Street Cape Town 

SAPS Worcester Fairbairn Street Cape Town 

Dept of Forestry & Water 2 Hargreaves Avenue King Williams Town  

Education Building Buffalo Road King Williams Town  

Edufin PE 3 Somers Road Port Elizabeth 

Fidelity Centre 190 - 192 Govan Mbeki Avenue Port Elizabeth 

North-End 6655 Govan Mbeki Avenue Port Elizabeth 

The Arches 7 Taylor Street King Williams Town  

Kimberley Building 41 du Toitspan Way Kimberly  

Kimberley Printing 13 Woodley Street Kimberly  

Nedbank Kimberley 37 Chapel Street Kimberly  

Perm Kimberley 33 du Toitspan Way Kimberly  

Wilcon House 24 Fabricia Road,Fabricia, Kimberley Kimberly  

135 Pietermaritz Street 135 Pietermaritzburg Street Pietermaritzburg 

151/155 Juniper Road 151 - 155 Juniper Road Durban 

Lakeview Terrace 7 Metica Moon Street Richards Bay  

Perm Smith Street 343 Smith Street Durban 

Perm Building Pietermartizburg 234 Church Street Pietermaritzburg 

Standard Bank Longmarket Street 188 Longmarket Street Pietermaritzburg 
ABSA Cash Centre 4 Frosterley Crescent, Durban Durban 

Property schedule
Commercial
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acquisition 
date

GLA/m2 Market value 
30-09-2013

Vacancies Vacant Rental rate 
p/m2

m2 R m2 % R
September 2011  1 533  4 182 000 -  -   38

September 2011  2 895  24 147 000 -  -   76

May 2013  2 522  45 500 000 -  -   195

September 2011  1 630  14 373 000 -  -   109

September 2011  3 708  23 000 000 631,32  17 31

September 2011  2 880  20 743 000 2450,00  85 28

September 2011  5 093  37 000 000 909,00  18 91

September 2011  1 647  9 289 000 -  -   0

September 2011  1 066  7 983 000 174.00  16 86

September 2011  2 570  13 846 000 -  -   34

September 2011  2 922  32 300 000 -  -   115

September 2011  3 400  13 855 000 2591,00  76 15

April 12  2 926  32 140 000 -  -   110

September 2011  6 997  42 466 000 78,00  1 75

August 2012  1 884  11 697 000 -  -   0

August 2012  1 637  12 480 000 1637,00  100 0

August 2012  1 361  14 441 000 -  -   102

August 2012  4 080  50 960 000 -  -   93

August 2012  1 408  18 494 000 -  -   126

August 2012  2 935  27 566 000 429,72  15 94

December 2012  3 768  51 700 000 502,93  13 163

December 2012  16 346  115 500 000 1023,00  6 65

January 2013  12 243  114 600 000 244,00  2 96

January 2013  13 347  114 690 000 719,65  5 94

September 2011  2 278  7 831 000 2278,00  100 0

September 2011  2 299  15 550 000 1104,00  48 55

September 2011  1 357  13 056 000 -  -   93

September 2011  3 416  16 062 000 1571,00  46 27

September 2011  3 848  25 857 000 -  -   70

September 2011  3 790  29 000 000 -  -   84

September 2011  1 444  2 683 000 1444,00  100 0

September 2011  3 500  26 755 000 -  -   94

September 2011  7 456  47 166 000 834,00  11 76

September 2011  7 018  70 971 000 -  -   115

September 2011  2 707  13 377 000 2379,00  88 16

September 2011  1 689  2 292 000 296,00  18 16

September 2011  1 193  956 000 -  -   11

September 2011  1 252  11 853 000 -  -   117

September 2011  4 967  18 189 000 813,98  16 57

May 2013  2 659  31 067 000 -  -   120

September 2011  2 198  20 233 000 -  -   100

September 2011  1 561  14 589 000 242,92  16 91

September 2011  13 078  74 813 000 4247,16  32 68

September 2011  10 138  45 297 000 3116,39  31 43

September 2011  2 726  10 558 000 1111,18  41 46

September 2011  3 890  25 238 000 1974,46  51 48
August 2012  2 359  31 569 000 -  -   133

 187 621  1 407 914 000  32 802,00 
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Property  
name

Address CITY/Town

38 Derrick Road 38 Derrick Road Johannesburg 

46 Steel Road 46 Steel Road Johannesburg 

CMH Spartan 60 Steel Road Johannesburg 

Creston 49 - 53 Firge Road Johannesburg 

Diesel Road 12 - 14 Diesel Road Johannesburg 

Jet Industrial Park Corner Harold Flight & Web Roads Johannesburg 

JM Investments 1321 Spyker Crescent Johannesburg 

Kimberley Clark Bevan Road Johannesburg 

McCarthy Centre 3 End Street Johannesburg 

Plantation Road 18 18 Plantation Road Johannesburg 

Plantation Road 20 20 Plantation Road Johannesburg 

Tarry's Head Office Corner La Rochelle & Crystal Roads Johannesburg 

Transwire 28 Main Street Johannesburg 

Virgin Active Benoni Corner Woburn Avenue & Pioneer Drive Johannesburg 

16 & 18 Forge Road 16 & 18 Forge Road Johannesburg 

21 Dartfield (Omlap) 7 Dartfield Road Johannesburg 

Fabriek & Sterling Road Corner Fabriek & Sterling Roads Johannesburg 

Hi Tech Mini Factories 14 - 16 Gerhardus Street Johannesburg 

Kolbenco Erf1599, Alrode Johannesburg 

Waterworld 234 Malibongwe Drive, Northriding Johannesburg 

ABSA Bank - Amanda Lea 3 Amanda Avenue, Lea Glen, Roodepoort Johannesburg 

Herfred 52 Bok Street Polokwane  

Federal Mogul 41 Anderson Street Nelspruit 

9 Montague Drive 9 Montague Drive Cape Town 

Kwela Logistics 1 Range Road Cape Town 

Metcash Welkom 4th 11th Street Welkom  

Corpgro Welkom cnr 2nd & 3rd Streets Welkom  

Premier Milling - Pinetown 8 Wareing Road Durban 
Star Foods 2 Cardiff Road Durban 

Property schedule
Industrial
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PURCHASE 
date

GLA Market value 
30-09-2013

Vacancies Vacant Rental rate 
p/m2

m2 R m2 % R
September 2011  3 846  12 726 000 -  -   37

September 2011  3 790  13 184 000 -  -   35

September 2011  2 467  7 461 000 -  -   43

September 2011  6 546  23 485 000 -  -   41

September 2011  7 923  20 387 000 -  -   34

September 2011  10 631  22 100 000 1792  17 18

September 2011  2 700  8 750 000 -  -   31

September 2011  6 817  15 747 000 -  -   25

September 2011  5 935  22 100 000 -  -   35

September 2011  3 954  13 121 000 659  17 31

September 2011  4 209  15 464 000 -  -   39

September 2011  10 824  16 819 000 173  2 18

September 2011  6 500  15 302 000 -  -   29

September 2011  3 154  23 100 000 -  -   67

September 2011  3 166  9 409 000 970  31 25

September 2011  1 016  4 369 000 -  -   46

September 2011  4 586  12 109 000 -  -   24

September 2011  2 719  13 740 000 257  9 49

May 2013  13 722  27 878 000 -  -   20

May 2013  6 524  39 070 000 -  -   63

August 2013  3 411  9 666 228 -  -   29

September 2011  2 250  7 987 000 -  -   36

September 2011  900  2 880 000 -  -   45

September 2011  2 649  14 036 000 115  4 59

October 2012  15 450  46 750 000 -  -   29

September 2011  6 812  9 522 000 -  -   18

September 2011  4 401  1 252 000 -  -   5

September 2011  5 850  21 502 000 -  -   39
September 2011  3 114  12 837 000 -  -   42

 155 867  462 753 228  3 966 
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Property  
name

Address city/town

Melville Properties 7th Street Mellville Johannesburg 

Shoprite Boksburg 262 Commissioner Street Johannesburg 

The Pond Shopping Centre James Crescent Johannesburg 

Town Centre Boksburg 95 Leeupoort Street Johannesburg 

ABSA Bank - Nigel Hendrik Verwoerd and 2nd Avenue, Nigel Johannesburg 

ABSA Bank - Heidelberg 42 Uerckermamn, Heidelberg Johannesburg 

ABSA Bank - Gezina Ben Swaart & Voortrekker Drive, Gezina Pretoria  

105 Landros Mare Street 105 Landros Mare Street corner Mark Street Polokwane  

106 Landros Mare Street 106 Landros Mare Street Polokwane  

Ellerines Thohoyandou Thohoyandou Shopping Centre Thohoyandou 

Groblersdal Fruit & Veg City 2 Van Riebeeck Street Groblersdal 

Sibasa Shopping Centre Sisbasa Shopping Centre Sibasa 

Thohoyandou Centre Thohoyandou Centre Thohoyandou 

Thohoyandou Shopping Centre Thohoyandou Shopping Centre Thohoyandou 

Dikai Shopping Centre R40 National Highway cnr R536 Hazyview  

Lowveld Lifestyle Centre Waterval Avenue Nelspruit 

Nelspruit Centre Corner Hensdall & Anderson Streets Nelspruit 

Nelspruit Ellerines 1 20 Bester Street Nelspruit 

Simunye Shopping Centre R40 National Highway Hazyview  

Town Talk Nelspruit 17 Andrew Street Nelspruit 

OK Klerksdorp Corner Delver, Leask & Oliver Tambo Streets Klerksdorp 

The Terminus Shopping centre 1287 Embarkment Street Klerksdorp 

Mid town Mall Corner Loop and Fatima Bhayat, Rustenburg Rustenburg 

Transforum Centre Portion 191 of Erf 272 JQ Farms, Rustenburg Rustenburg 

Impala Centre Bethlehem and Fatima Bhayat Street, Rustenburg Rustenburg 

Citizens Cape Town 177 Main Road Cape Town 

Oudehuis Centre 122 Main Road Cape Town 

Ronsyn Building 26 Devonshire Hill Road Cape Town 

Truworths Corner Corner Symphony Way & Minuet Lane Cape Town 

Sterkspruit Boxer Shopping Centre 60 Main Street, Sterkspruit Sterkspruit  

Tsolo Shopping Centre Main Road, Tsolo Tsolo 

Sanlam Centre Vryburg 70 Market Street Vryburg 

Taung Forum Station Road Taung  

Citizens Building Kimberley 8 - 14 Jones Street Kimberly  

Kathu Shopping Centre Ben Alberts Road Kathu 

Klein Brothers 52 - 62 George Street Kimberly  

38 Prospecton Road 38 Prospecton Road Durban 

4 Weightman Avenue 4 Weightman Avenue Empangeni  

Greytown Shopping Centre Corner Sergeant & Oakes Streets Greytown  

Mkuze Plaza Main Road Mkuze 

Ellerines Dundee Corner Wilson, King Edward & Victoria Streets Dundee  
Royal Palm Avenue 1287 Embarkment Street Durban 

TOTAL

Property schedule
Retail
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acquisition 
date

GLA Market value 
30-09-2013

Vacancies Vacant Rental rate 
p/m2

m2 R m2 % R
September 2011  1 094  13 139 000 -  -   139

September 2011  3 034  20 168 000 -  -   62

September 2011  5 501  32 672 000 -  -   56

September 2011  6 883  25 400 000 -  -   34

August 2013  961  6 896 699 -  -   71

August 2013  777  6 764 611 -  -   93

August 2013  2 053  17 513 579 -  -   89

September 2011  571  4 399 000 -  -   87

September 2011  1 200  9 592 000 -  -   76

September 2011  829  4 602 000 -  -   50

September 2011  3 980  13 362 000 869  22 27

September 2011  4 102  35 740 000 -  -   81

September 2011  4 006  24 319 000 -  -   66

September 2011  4 359  20 107 000 1090  25 76

September 2011  2 923  15 500 000 -  -   66

September 2011  11 170  47 716 000 -  -   45

September 2011  1 060  11 987 000 -  -   118

September 2011  1 147  10 777 000 -  -   100

September 2011  6 538  33 307 000 464  7 54

September 2011  1 082  6 692 000 -  -   63

September 2011  7 931  21 074 000 461  6 22

July 2012  11 377  70 858 000 516  5 66

August 2012  17 256  197 100 000 1592  9 95

January 2013  4 747  96 240 000 -  -   215

June 2013  3 604  55 180 000 -  -   159

September 2011  1 480  14 521 000 84  6 107

September 2011  4 182  28 321 000 1572  38 65

September 2011  2 391  27 900 000 -  -   110

September 2011  520  9 460 000 -  -   167

September 2012  6 733  51 179 000 -  -   80

September 2012  4 097  29 392 000 -  -   69

September 2011  1 853  16 291 000 267  14 91

September 2011  10 231  74 065 000 1063  10 77

September 2011  840  4 941 000 -  -   69

September 2011  5 088  37 287 000 92  2 71

September 2011  915  3 494 000 -  -   47

September 2011  1 528  15 229 000 115  8 104

September 2011  4 171  28 700 000 100  2 70

September 2011  5 373  26 059 000 -  -   52

September 2011  8 535  46 717 000 701  8 60

September 2011  3 518  16 197 000 -  -   55
September 2011  893  11 884 000 -  -   150

 170 535  1 242 742 889  8 986 

 514 023  3 113 410 117  45 754
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Arrowhead’s primary 
focus is growing income 
distributions per unit.
This is achieved by driving rental income from the 
property portfolio, containing costs to a level 
lower than rental growth, fixing interest rates 
on the company’s debt and deriving income from 
property acquisitions, where income generated 
exceeds the cost of equity and borrowing on such 
acquisitions.

Property income
All leases in the property portfolio provide for 
annual rental escalations. After taking into 
account the renewal of expired leases as well as 
letting of space where leases are not renewed, 
rental received on the existing portfolio should 
increase by 6%. The vacancy percentage is expected 
to remain the same as at the year end and any 
reduction would increase the property income for 
the year. Every effort will be made to improve the 
percentage of leases renewed as well as lengthening 
the lease expiry profile, both of which should 
have a beneficial effect on future rental growth. 
The 56 426m2 office component let to Government 
is expected to perform in line with the overall 
office portfolio.

Property and administrative expenses
Taking into account a satisfactory level of 
recoveries of municipal charges from tenants as 
well as a level of maintenance deemed necessary 
to safeguard the rent producing capacity of every 
property in the portfolio, expenses are expected 
to increase in line with revenue.

Interest paid 
Arrowhead has fixed or entered into interest rate 
swops over 90% of its debt for five years at date 
of drawdown.

Revenue enhancing acquisitions
It is the company’s policy to only acquire 
properties where the income generated by the 
property exceeds the cost of capital and debt used 
to make the acquisition. The additional revenue 
earned from the purchases made in 2013 will enhance 
the 2014 distributions, as will the acquisitions 
made during the 2014 year, for the period after 
the purchases become rent producing.

After 30 September 2013, Arrowhead entered into 
an agreement for the purchase of a portfolio of 
residential properties. It is the intention to 
grow the residential portfolio during 2014 to 
between R600 million and R1 billion, and the 
commercial portfolio by a similar amount. The 
impact on distributions will depend on the yield 
at which the properties are acquired, the cost of 
capital for these acquisitions and the date when 
the properties become rent producing.

Projected 2014 earnings per 
combined unit.
For the 2014 year the portfolio of properties 
at 30 September 2013 is projected to produce 
distributions of R1,25 per A and B unit i.e an 11% 
growth on the R1,13 paid for 2013. Acquisitions 
during 2014 will add an additional distribution of 
between two to four cents per unit. Taking into 
account the prospects for the existing portfolio 
as well as the effect of new acquisitions, 
distributions are expected to be between R1,27 and 
R1,29 per A and B unit in the 2014 year, an increase 
of between 12% and 14% over the distribution of 
R1,13 paid in 2013.

Prospects for 2014 have not been audited or 
reviewed by Grant Thornton.
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Arrowhead’s board 
considers sound 
corporate governance 
practices to be a 
critical element in 
delivering sustainable 
growth for the benefit 
of all stakeholders. In 
conducting the affairs of 
the company, the board 
endorses the principles 
of fairness, responsibility, 
transparency and 
accountability advocated 
by King III.
A register of Arrowhead’s compliance with the 
principles of King III can be found on the 
company’s website www.arrowheadproperties.co.za. 

In regularly reviewing the company’s governance 
structures, the board exercises and ensures 
effective and ethical leadership, always acting 
in the best interests of the company, at the same 
time  concerning itself with the sustainability of 
its business operations.

The board
The board is responsible for the strategic 
direction and control of the company. It exercises 
control through a governance framework that 
includes the review and implementation of detailed 
reporting presented to it and its subcommittees 
and the implementation of a continuously updated 
risk management programme.

The role of the chairman and the CEO are separate 
and the CEO is fully responsible and accountable 

for the operations of the company.

The chairman leads the board and facilitates 
constructive relations between the executive and 
the board. The chairman holds no other listed 
company chairman positions.

The board comprises seven directors of whom four 
are independent non-executive directors. The 
executive directors are Gerald Leissner, the CEO, 
Mark Kaplan, the COO and Imraan Suleman, the CFO.

The board has adopted a charter that sets out the 
practices and processes it follows to discharge its 
responsibilities. The charter specifically sets a 
description of roles, functions, responsibilities 
and powers of the board, the shareholders, the 
chairman, individual directors, company secretary, 
and other prescribed officers and executives of 
the company.

The terms of reference of the board and its 
committees deal with such matters as corporate 
governance, directors’ dealings in securities, 
declarations of conflicts of interest, board 
meeting documentation and procedures for the 
nomination, appointment, induction, training and 
evaluation of the directors.

There is an appropriate balance of power and 
authority on the board so that no individual 
has unfettered powers of decision-making and no 
individual dominates the board’s deliberations 
and decisions. The board regularly reviews the 
decision-making authority given to management as 
well as those matters reserved for decision-making 
by the board.

Any director appointed during the year is required 
to have the appointment confirmed by linked 
unitholders at the next annual general meeting. 
One third of non-executive directors retire on 
a rotation basis and may also make themselves 
available for re-election.

For details of directors making themselves 
available at the forthcoming annual general 
meeting, see pages 117 and 125 of this report.

The board has delegated certain specific 
responsibilities to the following committees:

 ■ Remuneration committee

 ■ Audit and risk committee

 ■ Investment committee

 ■ Social and ethics committee
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The committees assist the board in discharging its 
responsibilities and duties under King III, whilst 
overall responsibility remains with the board. 
Full transparency and disclosure of committee 
deliberations is encouraged and the minutes of all 
committee meetings are available to all directors.

Directors are encouraged to take independent 
advice at the cost of the company for the proper 
execution of their duties and responsibilities. 
During the year no director sought such advice. 
The board has unrestricted access to the external 
auditors, professional advisors, the services of 
the company secretary, the executives and the staff 
of the company at any given time. An induction 
programme is provided for new directors.

A detailed assessment of all board members, 
including the chairman, has been undertaken. 

Directors and committee members are supplied 
with comprehensive information that allows them 
to properly discharge their responsibilities. 
The members of the board bring a mix of skills, 
experience and technical expertise. The board 
meets at least four times a year.

Board meetings and attendance

Name 13.11.12 13.02.13 08.05.13 26.06.13 14.08.13

T.M. Adler* P P P P P

G.G.L. Leissner P P P P P

I.E. Suleman P P P P P

E.P. Stroebel P P P A A

M.J. Kaplan P P P P P

S. Noik P P P P P

M.A.E. Nell A P P P P

* Chairman

Board committees

The investment committee

The committee comprises M.A.E Nell, E.P. Stroebel, 
G.G.L. Leisner, M.J. Kaplan and I.E. Suleman and 
meets when decisions are required to acquire or 
dispose of property assets. Given the role played 
by the committee, it is acknowledged that the 
committee does not fully comply with King III in 
that the committee does not have a majority of 

independent non-executive directors. A full due 
diligence is undertaken before any property is 
considered for acquisition, and is circulated to 
all members of the committee and board of directors 
in advance of meetings. Decisions of the committee 
and board of directors require consensus.

The investment committee has met prior to the 
conclusion of each acquisition or disposal.

The remuneration committee

The committee is made up of two independent non-
executive directors whose primary responsibility 
is to monitor the remuneration policy of the company 
and more specifically the executive directors and 
ensure that directors and senior executives are 
remunerated fairly and responsibly.

The committee considers the mix of regular salary 
remuneration, annual bonuses and incentive elements 
that meet the company’s needs. Incentives are 
based on targets that are stretching, verifiable 
and relevant.

The procedure for appointments to the board is 
formal and transparent and a matter for the board 
as a whole.

Where necessary, the committee will assess, 
recruit and nominate new non-executive directors. 
Remuneration of non-executive directors, who do 
not receive incentive awards, is reviewed and 
set by the committee for ultimate approval by 
unitholders. The CEO, COO and CFO attend meetings 
by invitation.

Meetings and attendance:

Name 11.09.13

M.A.E. Nell* P

T.M. Adler P

*Chairman

The audit and risk committee

The Companies Act, 2008 has transformed the audit 
committee from being a committee of the board to 
a separate statutory committee that is appointed 
by the unitholders. However, the audit committee 
still forms part of the board even though it has 
specific statutory responsibilities over and above 
responsibilities assigned to it by the board.
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Arrowhead’s audit and risk committee is integral to 
the company’s risk management process. It reports 
to unitholders on the extent to which it carried 
out its statutory oversight duties in respect of 
the external auditors, the appropriateness of the 
financial statements and the accounting practices, 
as well as the internal financial controls. The 
audit report can be found on page 72.

The committee consists of three independent non-
executive directors. The CEO, COO and CFO as well 
as representatives of the external auditors attend 
meetings by invitation.

The committee members have the requisite financial 
and commercial skills to contribute to the 
committee’s deliberations.

The auditors have unrestricted access to the audit 
committee.

Well in advance of meetings, the audit and risk 
committee receives reports on the financial 
performance, internal controls, adherence to 
accounting policies, compliance and area of 
significant risk as well as written reports from 
the auditors.

The committee has unrestricted access to 
independent expert advice should the need arise.

All non-audit services by the external auditors 
are required to be approved in advance by the 
audit and risk committee.

One of the responsibilities of the committee is to 
monitor the adequacy and effectiveness of internal 
controls and risk management processes generally.

The company has an effective ongoing process for 
identifying risk, measuring its potential impact 
and initiating and implementing measures to 
reduce exposure to an acceptable level. External 
specialist consultants will be utilised, where 
required, to assist the committee with risk 
management measures.

Having regard to the size and life-stage of the 
company, a dedicated internal audit function is 
not warranted at this stage and the board believes 
that the IT governance policy is appropriate. 
Use is made of external specialists (including 
resources of the external property managers) 
in respect of internal audit and IT functions. 
The situation and needs in this regard will be 
reassessed by the committee on an ongoing basis.

Nothing has come to the attention of the committee 
to indicate there has been any material breakdown 
of controls during the year.

As required by the JSE the audit and risk 
committee and the board are satisfied that the 
CFO, Imraan Suleman, has the necessary skills and 
qualifications to fulfill his responsibilities.

Meetings and attendance:

Name 13.11.12 12.02.13 07.05.13 13.08.13

S. Noik* P P P P

E.P. Stroebel P P P P

M.A.E. Nell A P P P

* Chairman

The social and ethics committee

A formally appointed social and ethics committee 
of the board, comprising executive director Mark 
Kaplan and non-executive directors Taffy Adler and 
Elize Stroebel, has been constituted to assist the 
board with social and ethics related matters, as 
provided for in the Companies Act, 2008.

The committee acts on behalf of the board and 
is responsible for evaluating social and ethics 
responsibilities and making recommendations to 
the board. The committee has all the functions 
and responsibilities provided for in the Companies 
Act, 2008. The CEO and CFO attend meetings by 
invitation.

Meetings and attendance:

Name 05.02.13 24.04.13

T.M. Adler* P P

E.P. Stroebel A A

M.J. Kaplan P P

* Chairman

Company Secretary
The board is assisted by a suitably qualified 
company secretary, Neville Toerien (Principal 
of Probity Business Services (Pty) Ltd) who has 
adequate experience, who is not a director of the 
company and who has been empowered to fulfil his 
duties. Following review, the board is satisfied 
that the company secretary maintains an arms length 
relationship with the board and is sufficiently 
qualified and experienced to execute the required 
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duties. The company secretary advises the board on 
appropriate procedures for management of meetings 
and ensures the corporate governance framework is 
maintained. The directors have unlimited access 
to advice and services of the company secretary.

Nothing has come to the attention of the board 
of directors that indicate non-compliance by the 
company with applicable laws and regulations.

King III review

Key:

Compliant R

Under review £

Non-compliant S

Partially compliant P

Areas of partial compliance or non-
compliance will be assessed in the next 
financial year.

1. Ethical leadership and corporate 
citizenship

1.1 The board should provide effective 
leadership based on an ethical 
foundation

R

1.2 The board should ensure that the 
company is and is seen to be a 
responsible corporate citizen

R

1.3 The board should ensure that the 
company’s ethics are managed 
effectively

R

2. Boards and directors

2.1 The board should act as the focal 
point for and custodian of corporate 
governance

R

2.2 The board should appreciate that 
strategy, risk, performance and 
sustainability are inseparable

R

2.3 The board should provide effective 
leadership based on an ethical 
foundation

R

2.4 The board should ensure that the 
company is and is seen to be a 
responsible corporate citizen

R

2.5 The board should ensure that the 
company’s ethics are managed 
effectively

R

2.6 The board should ensure that the 
company has an effective and 
independent audit committee

R

2.7 The board should be responsible for 
the governance of risk

R

2.8 The board should be responsible 
for information technology (IT) 
governance

R

2.9 The board should ensure that the 
company complies with applicable 
laws and considers adherence to non-
binding rules, codes and standards

R

2.10 The board should ensure that there 
is an effective risk-based internal 
audit

R

2.11 The board should appreciate that 
stakeholders’ perceptions affect the 
company’s reputation

R

2.12 The board should ensure the integrity 
of the company’s integrated report

R

2.13 The board should report on the 
effectiveness of the company’s system 
of internal controls

R

2.14 The board and its directors should 
act in the best interests of the 
company

R

2.15 The board should consider business 
rescue proceedings or other 
turnaround mechanisms as soon as the 
company is financially distressed as 
defined in the Act 

R

2.16 The board should elect a chairman of 
the board who is an independent non-
executive director. The CEO of the 
company should not also fulfil the 
role of chairman of the board

R

2.17 The board should appoint the chief 
executive officer and establish 
a framework for the delegation of 
authority 

R

2.18 The board should comprise a balance 
of power, with a majority of non-
executive directors. The majority of 
non-executive directors should be 
independent

R

2.19 Directors should be appointed through 
a formal process

R

2.20 The induction of and ongoing training 
and development of directors should 
be conducted through formal processes

R

2.21 The board should be assisted by a 
competent, suitably qualified and 
experienced company secretary

R
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2.22 The evaluation of the board, its 
committees and the individual 
directors should be performed every 
year

R

2.23 The board should delegate certain 
functions to well-structured 
committees but without abdicating its 
own responsibilities

R

2.24 A governance framework should be 
agreed between the group and its 
subsidiary boards

n/a

2.25 Companies should remunerate directors 
and executives fairly and responsibly

R

2.26 Companies should disclose the 
remuneration of each individual 
director and certain senior 
executives

R

2.27 Shareholders should approve the 
company’s remuneration policy

P

3. Audit committees

3.1 The board should ensure that the 
company has an effective and 
independent audit committee

R

3.2 Audit committee members should be 
suitably skilled and experienced 
independent non-executive directors

R

3.3 The audit committee should be chaired 
by an independent non-executive 
director

R

3.4 The audit committee should oversee 
integrated reporting

R

3.5 The audit committee should ensure 
that a combined assurance model is 
applied to provide a coordinated 
approach to all assurance activities

R

3.6 The audit committee should satisfy 
itself of the expertise, resources 
and experience of the company’s 
finance function

R

3.7 The audit committee should be 
responsible for overseeing of 
internal audit

R

3.8 The audit committee should be an 
integral component of the risk 
management process

R

3.9 The audit committee is responsible 
for recommending the appointment of 
the external auditor and overseeing 
the external audit process

R

3.10 The audit committee should report to 
the board and shareholders on how it 
has discharged its duties

R

4. The governance of risk

4.1 The board should be responsible for 
the governance of risk

R

4.2 The board should determine the levels 
of risk tolerance

R

4.3 The risk committee or audit committee 
should assist the board in carrying 
out its risk responsibilities

R

4.4 The board should delegate to 
management the responsibility to 
design, implement and monitor the 
risk management plan

R

4.5 The board should ensure that risk 
assessments are performed on a 
continual basis

R

4.6 The board should ensure that 
frameworks and methodologies 
are implemented to increase 
the probability of anticipating 
unpredictable risks

R

4.7 The board should ensure that 
management considers and implements 
appropriate risk responses

R

4.8 The board should ensure continual 
risk monitoring by management

R

4.9 The board should receive assurance 
regarding the effectiveness of the 
risk management process

R

4.10 The board should ensure that there 
are processes in place enabling 
complete, timely, relevant, accurate 
and accessible risk disclosure to 
stakeholders

R

5. The governance of information 
technology

5.1 The board should be responsible 
for information technology (IT) 
governance

R

5.2 IT should be aligned with the 
performance and sustainability 
objectives of the company

R

5.3 The board should delegate to 
management the responsibility for the 
implementation of an IT governance 
framework

R

5.4 The board should monitor and evaluate 
significant IT investments and 
expenditure

R

5.5 IT should form an integral part of 
the company’s risk management

R

5.6 The board should ensure that 
information assets are managed 
effectively

R
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5.7 A risk committee and audit committee 
should assist the board in carrying 
out its IT responsibilities

R

6. Compliance with laws, rules, codes and 
standards

6.1 The board should ensure that the 
company complies with applicable laws 
and considers adherence to nonbinding 
rules, codes and standards

R

6.2 The board and each individual 
director should have a working 
understanding of the effect of the 
applicable laws, rules, codes and 
standards on the company and its 
business

R

6.3 Compliance risk should form an 
integral part of the company’s risk 
management process

R

6.4 The board should delegate to 
management the implementation of an 
effective compliance framework and 
processes

R

7. Internal audit

7.1 The board should ensure that there 
is an effective risk based internal 
audit

R

7.2 Internal audit should follow a risk 
based approach to its plan

R

7.3 Internal audit should provide 
a written assessment of the 
effectiveness of the company’s 
system of internal controls and risk 
management

R

7.4 The audit committee should be 
responsible for overseeing internal 
audit

R

7.5 Internal audit should be 
strategically positioned to achieve 
its objectives

R

8. Governing stakeholder relationships

8.1 The board should appreciate that 
stakeholders’ perceptions affect a 
company’s reputation

R

8.2 The board should delegate to 
management to proactively deal 
with stakeholder relationships, 
stakeholders and the outcomes of 
these dealings

R

8.3 The board should strive to achieve 
the appropriate balance between its 
various stakeholder groupings, in the 
best interests of the company

R

8.4 Companies should ensure the equitable 
treatment of shareholders

R

8.5 Transparent and effective 
communication with stakeholders 
is essential for building and 
maintaining their trust and 
confidence

R

8.6 The board should ensure that disputes 
are resolved as effectively, 
efficiently and expeditiously as 
possible

R

9. Integrated reporting and disclosure

9.1 The board should ensure the integrity 
of the company’s integrated report

R

9.2 Sustainability reporting and 
disclosure should be integrated with 
the company’s financial reporting

R

9.3 Sustainability reporting and 
disclosure should be independently 
assured

£

Arrowhead Integrated Annual Report 201358



Ou� app��ach t� p��pe�ty in�e�tment 
i� �ut �f thi� 	o�ld.  

Arrowhead Integrated Annual Report 2013 59



Su�tainability, 

en�i��nment, c�mmunity 

��cial in�e�tment & 

p��pe�ty c
ha�te�

Arrowhead Integrated Annual Report 201360



The directors of the company have accountability to 
unitholders and an obligation to all stakeholders 
(including unitholders), to ensure that the company’s 
resources are utilised to ensure its continuing viability.
Arrowhead’s major risks are identified as follows:

Risk Level Mitigating factor

Business Continuity

1 Property assets acquired and 
owned are correctly registered in 
the name of the company.

Low Title deeds inspected at least once a year.

2 Claims are made against the 
company relating to the use by 
3rd parties of any property owned 
by the company.

Low Insurance.

3 Company and directors are 
correctly recorded at Company’s 
office - Company can be hijacked.

Low Company secretary checks at least once a quarter.

4 Properties acquired are not 
suitably priced or do not fit 
investment criteria.

Low The Investment Committee approves all properties acquired. 
Assessment of value against yield.

5 Insurance claims are in respect 
of destroyed assets insufficient 
- third party equipment damaged - 
residual risk cover.

Low All properties are insured at replacement value.

6 Risk that seller doesn’t own 
property.

Low Warranties are contained in sale agreements.

7 Property assets are destroyed or 
rendered unlettable by fire or 
any other cause.

Moderate Insurance claims in respect of destroyed assets are 
sufficient - all properties of insured at replacement value, 
including loss of income.

8 Bank loans are not properly 
recorded and upward fluctuation 
in interest protected.

Moderate Interest rates are fixed. Internal controls are tested 
regularly.

9 Tenants do not renew leases. Moderate Internal controls insure tenants contacted timeously.

10 Newly acquired properties are not 
covered by insurance.

Moderate Internal controls are tested regularly. Insurance policy 
caters for additions for an adequate time frame.

11 Information relating to tenant 
leases are not correctly 
recorded, protected and actioned.

Moderate Internal controls are tested regularly.

12 Managing of receipts and payments 
for fraud, negligence or "plain" 
errors.

High Internal controls are tested regularly. Schedule of payments 
regularly reviewed. Cash balances regularly reviewed as are 
service level agreements and insurance.

13 Tenants are not paying rentals. High New tenants are credit vetted. Existing tenant's arrears are 
regularly pursued.

14 Cash resources are not protected. High Internal controls are tested regularly. Schedule of payments 
are regularly reviewed as is Insurance cover.
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Risk Level Mitigating factor

IT

15 Unauthorised users gain access; 
system fails: integrity of 
information is compromised.

Low Arrowhead is a small team with a single server. Each user has 
a laptop which is backed up regularly. The company relies 
on JHI for disaster recovery and most IT processes. JHI 
audits its IT system, has a disaster recovery plan and is ISO 
compliant.

Taxation

16 Incorrect taxation is paid. Low Tax computations are performed each year and are audited by 
the eternal auditors.

Human Resources

17 Loss of key staff members. Low Staff are remunerated competitively and performance bonuses 
and incentives are included in packages.

Succession

18 Loss of executives. Moderate CEO is on a 3 year contract (just under 1 year remaining) 
and CFO and COO are on 5 year contracts with under 3 years 
to run.

Compliance

19 Legal or financial risk from non-
compliance with statutes.

Low Executive together with appropriate advisors take necessary 
steps to mitigate this risk.

In terms of environmental sustainability, Arrowhead has commenced a process of resource management with an 
eye on future needs. 

In all buildings acquired, equipment will be installed to ensure that electricity, water, refuse and domestic 
effluent are managed to provide cost effective as well as customer friendly solutions. This process commenced 
in January 2013 on the initial portfolio of 89 properties.

The Arrowhead Charitable Trust (the “Trust”) was established during the financial year under review. A loan 
of R134 million was advanced by Arrowhead to the Trust, pursuant to which it acquired 9 million A units and 
9 million B units. The capital of the Trust will be created when it is able to dispose of the units and repay 
the loan. The income derived from the capital will be available to welfare and educational institutions 
where Arrowhead has a presence.

Arrowhead is cognizant of the Property Charter between the South African property industry and Department 
of Trade and Industry which has recently been amended. 

Arrowhead will comply with the scorecard to the best of its ability and will apply for a rating in terms of 
the Charter as soon as practical.

Arrowhead’s prime focus is on sustaining and growing the income distributions per unit payable to unitholders. 

To achieve this, all property acquisitions must be revenue enhancing in that the yield at which property is 
acquired must exceed the cost of capital.

The key focus is to increase the net income of each property by renewing leases that have expired, letting 
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vacant space, controlling and where possible reducing property operating costs and most importantly, keeping 
borrowing costs at the lowest level possible while at the same time fixing interest rates to avoid additional 
costs of borrowing should interest rates increase. 

Effective financial controls are in place both at Arrowhead and its external partners to ensure the correct 
recording as well as the integrity of all income and expenditure generated by the portfolio of properties. 

The mechanism to manage risk of any property or major tenant negatively effecting the payment of unitholder 
returns is the size and the spread of the portfolio of properties in terms of number of properties and of 
tenants across all sectors throughout the country.

There will always be a strong focus on the highest standards of corporate governance.

The model provides for effective investor relations by way of regular communications with unitholders. This 
includes interim and year-end financial reviews and the timeous issuing of a timeous annual report and 
regular updates on progress being made in growing the company. 

Arrowhead is conscious of the excellent reputation it needs to build with all its stakeholders and all its 
actions, including its branding, will ensure this is achieved and maintained. The company has as one of its 
core values the respect for human rights.
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Report of the  
audit committee
The audit committee considers that it has 
adequately performed its functions in terms of its 
mandate, the King Code of Governance Principles 
and the Companies Act 2008, as amended.

The committee carried out its duties by reviewing, 
on a quarterly basis,

 ■ Financial management reports;

 ■ External audit reports;

 ■ Internal audit reports.

The committee is satisfied
 ■ with the independence of the external auditor, 

including the provision of non-audit services 
and compliance with the company policy in 
this regard. The external auditor attends all 
meetings of the committee by invitation;

 ■ with the terms, nature, scope and proposed fee 
of the external auditor for the year ended 30 
September 2013;

 ■ with the financial statements and the accounting 
practices utilised in the preparation thereof;

 ■ with the company’s continuing viability as a 
going concern;

 ■ that the CFO has the necessary expertise and 
experience to carry out his duties.

Refer to page 52 in the section corporate 
governance, for additional details regarding the 
operations of the audit committee. 

______________________________

Selwyn Noik 
Audit committee chairman 
13 November 2013

Report of the 
social & ethics committee
The committee has been formed as provided for in 
the Companies Act 2008, as amended. Refer to page 
52 in the corporate governance section for details 
relating to the operation of the committee.

______________________________

Taffy Adler 
Social and ethics committee chairman 
13 November 2013
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Audited financial
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These financial statements have been audited as required by the Companies Act, 2008.
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The directors are responsible for the preparation 
and fair presentation of the annual financial 
statements of Arrowhead Properties Limited, 
comprising the statement of financial position at 
30 September 2013 and statements of comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and cash flows for the 
year then ended. To achieve the highest standards 
of financial reporting, these financial statements 
have been drawn up to comply with International 
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements 
of the Companies Act 2008, as amended.

The directors’ responsibility includes the design, 
implementation and maintenance of internal controls 
that will ensure the preparation, integrity and fair 
presentation of the financial statements and other 
financial information included in this report, 
selecting and applying appropriate accounting 
policies and making accounting estimates that are 
reasonable in the circumstances.

The directors have reviewed the appropriateness of 
the accounting policies and conclude that estimates 
and judgements are reasonable. They are of the 
opinion that the annual financial statements fairly 
present the financial position of the business at 
30 September 2013 and of its financial performance 
and cash flows for the year to 30 September 2013. 
The external auditors, who have unrestricted access 
to all records and information, as well as to the 
audit committee, concur with this statement. The 
directors believe that all representations made 
to the independent auditors during their audit 
are valid and appropriate. The unqualified audit 
report of Grant Thornton is presented on page 73.

In addition, the directors have also reviewed 
the cash flow forecast for the year to 30 
September 2014 and believe that the company has 
adequate resources to continue in operation for 
the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the annual 
financial statements have been prepared on a 
going-concern basis. These financial statements 
support the viability of the company.

The annual financial statements were approved by 

the board of directors on 13 November 2013 and are 
signed on its behalf by:

____________________________________ 
 
T. Adler 
CHAIRMAN

      

____________________________________

G. Leissner 
CEO

directors’ responsibility statement 
for the year ended 30 sepTEMBER 2013 
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In terms of section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act 
2008 as amended, we declare that to the best of 
our knowledge, for the year ended 30 September 
2013, Arrowhead has lodged with the Registrar of 
Companies all such returns as are required of a 
public company in terms of the Act and that such 
returns are true, correct and up to date.

____________________________________

Probity Business Services (Pty) Ltd 
Company Secretary 
13 November 2013

certification by  
the company secretary
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Report on the financial statements
We have audited the financial statements of Arrowhead 
Properties Limited set out on pages 68 to 115, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 
September 2013, and the statement of comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement 
of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes, 
comprising a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial 
statements
The company’s directors are responsible for the 
preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with IFRS and the requirements 
of the Companies Act, and for such internal control 
as the directors determine is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatements, whether due to 
fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. An audit involves performing 
procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. 

The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditors’ consider internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Arrowhead Properties Limited as at 30 
September 2013 and its financial performance and its 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
IFRS and the requirements of the Companies Act.

Other reports required by the Companies 
Act
As part of our audit of the financial statements 
for the year ended 30 September 2013, we have read 
the Directors’ Report, report of the audit committee 
and the certification by the company secretary 
for the purpose of identifying whether there are 
material inconsistencies between these reports and 
the audited financial statements.

These reports are the responsibility of the 
respective preparers. Based on reading these reports 
we have not identified material inconsistencies 
between these reports and the audited financial 
statements. However, we have not audited these 
reports and accordingly do not express an opinion on 
these reports.

Grant Thornton (Jhb) Inc. 
Registered Auditors 
Chartered Accountants 
Registration number: 1994/001166/21 
Director: Paul Badrick 
Sandton 
Date: 13 November 2013
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The board has pleasure in 
submitting their directors’ 
report for the year ended 
30 September 2013.

Nature of business
Arrowhead was a PLS company during the year ended 
30 September 2013, and is listed on the JSE Limited 
under the Financial – Real Estate sector. Arrowhead 
became a REIT with effect from 1 October 2013.

The company listed on the JSE on 9 December 2011 
and its primary business is long-term investment in 
quality rental generating properties. The company 
owns a portfolio of 118 retail, industrial and 
commercial properties valued at R3,1 billion, spread 
amongst all of the provinces.                      

Year under review
The results of the company are addressed in the 
reports of the Chairman and the executive directors 
and are set out in the annual financial statements 
on pages 68 to 115.

Share and debenture capital
The company’s authorised share capital comprises of 
2 000 000 000 ordinary shares of no par value. 
Each ordinary share is linked to one variable rate 
A debenture of 101,76 cents each or one variable 
rate B debenture of 101,76 cents each. The company’s 
ordinary shares and debentures trade as linked units 
on the JSE.                                              

During the year ended 30 September 2013 the following 
linked units were issued:

 ■ 34 725 492 A and B linked units were issued to 
fund the acquisition of investment properties;

 ■ 4 230 025 A and B linked units were issued to 
participants of the Arrowhead Unit Purchase 
Trust;

 ■ 9 000 000 A and B linked units were issued to the 
Arrowhead Charitable Trust.

There were 206 395 750 linked units in issue at 30 
September 2013.

Arrowhead Charitable Trust
The Arrowhead Charitable Trust (the “Trust”) was 
established during the current financial year. A 
loan of R134 million was advanced by Arrowhead to 
the Trust, pursuant to which it acquired 9 million A 
units and 9 million B units. The capital of the Trust 
will be established when it is able to dispose of the 
units and repay the loan. The income derived from the 
capital will be available to welfare and educational 
institutions where Arrowhead has a presence. In 
terms of the provisions of the trust deed and the 
requirements of and guidance provided in IAS 27 and 
SIC 12, Arrowhead as the sole founder controls the 
trust, and as such the trust has been consolidated 
in the group financial statements.

Dividends and interest distributions
No dividend has been declared or paid during the 
year under review as the company distributes all 
distributable earnings as interest on the debentures.

The following distributions were declared during the 
year:

 ■ Distribution number 5 of 27.10 cents per linked 
unit for the one month ended 31 December 2012

 ■ Distribution number 6 of 28.04 cents per linked 
unit for the three months ended 31 March 2013

 ■ Distribution number 7 of 28.54 cents per linked 
unit for the three months ended 30 June 2013

 ■ Distribution number 8 of 29.33 cents per linked 
unit for the three months ended 30 September 2013

directors’ report
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Directorate
The directors of the company at the date of this report were:

Executive directors

 ■ Gerald Leissner (CEO) (Appointed – 1 September 2011)

 ■ Mark Kaplan (COO) (Appointed – 1 September 2011)

 ■ Imraan Suleman (CFO) (Appointed – 1 September 2011)

Non – executive directors

 ■ Elize Stroebel (Appointed – 1 September 2011)

 ■ Matthew Nel (Appointed – 1 September 2011)

 ■ Taffy Adler ( Appointed – 1 September 2011)

 ■ Selwyn Noik ( Appointed – 1 September 2012)

The number of board and committee meetings attended by each of the directors during the year is tabled in 
the Corporate Governance Report (page 52).

Directors’ interests
The interests of the directors and their associates in the linked units of the company at 30 September 2013 
were as follows:

Beneficial Direct Beneficial Indirect Total

Executive directors 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013

Gerald Leissner

 ■ A Linked units 730 000 1 722 063 1 104 47 104 731 104 1 769 167

 ■ B Linked units 730 000 1 722 063 1 104 1 104 731 104 1 713 167

Mark Kaplan

 ■ A Linked units 730 000 1 893 302 - - 730 000 1 893 302

 ■ B Linked units 730 000 2 538 006 - - 730 000 2 538 006

Imraan Suleman

 ■ A Linked units 272 064 1 660 953 - - 272 064 1 660 953

 ■ B Linked units 272 064 1 660 953 - - 272 064 1 660 953
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Beneficial Direct Beneficial Indirect Total

Non-executive directors 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013

Matthew Nell

 ■ A Linked units 46 000 46 000

 ■ B Linked units 91 000 91 000

Selwyn Noik

 ■ A Linked units 1 000 1 000 1 000 1 000

 ■ B Linked units 70 000 70 000 1 000 1 000 71 000 71 000

A Linked unit 1 732 064 5 322 318 49 104 5 370 422

B Linked unit 1 802 064 6 082 022 2 104 6 084 126

3 534 128 11 404 340 4 204 50 208 3 538 336 11 454 548

There have been no changes in these holdings between the year end and the date of this report.

Directors’ interests in contracts
The company has not entered into any contracts in which a director has a material interest, during the year 
under review.

Going concern
The directors are of the opinion that the company has adequate resources to continue operating for the 
foreseeable future and that it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the company’s 
financial statements. The directors have satisfied themselves that the  company is in a sound financial 
position and that it has access to sufficient borrowing facilities to meet its foreseeable cash requirements.

Major linked unitholders
Beneficial unitholders holding in excess of 5% of the units in issue are detailed on pages 16 to 19 of the 
annual report.

Executive directors’ service contracts
In terms of the service contracts agreed between the executive directors and the company, the CEO is 
contracted until 30 September 2014 whilst the CFO and COO are both contracted until 30 September 2016.
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Directors’ Remuneration

2013 2012

Fees earned by non-executive directors R R

Elize Stroebel 203 500 185 000

Matthew Nell 209 000 190 000

Taffy Adler - -

Selwyn Noik 170 500 12 916

Leonard Brehm - 77 084

Total non – executive fee 583 000 465 000

Fees earned by executive directors R R

Gerald Leissner

- Annual salary 2 650 000 2 500 000

- Performance bonus - 1 250 000

- Sign on Bonus - 5 708 965

Mark Kaplan

- Annual salary 2 120 000 2 000 000

- Sign on bonus - 5 708 965

Imraan Suleman

- Annual salary 2 000 000 1 750 000

- Sign on bonus - 2 127 677

Total executive fee 6 770 000 21 045 607

Company secretary
The company secretary for the year and at the date of this report was Probity Business Services.

The business and postal addresses of the company secretary are set out page 129.

------------------------------------------- 
Probity Business Services (Pty) Ltd. 
Company Secretary 
13 November 2013
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statement of financial position

Group Company
Notes 2013 2012 2013 2012

R R R R

ASSETS
Non-current assets  3 162 189 978 2 228 916 047  3 296 199 978 2 228 916 047
Investment property  

3 101 410 116
 

2 222 209 828
 

3 101 410 116
 

2 222 209 828
- Fair value of property portfolio 2 3 070 451 681 2 211 719 041 3 070 451 681 2 211 719 041
- Straight line rental income accrual 3  30 958 435  10 490 787  30 958 435  10 490 787
Property, plant and equipment 5  494 109  833 207  494 109  833 207
Loans to participants of Arrowhead Unit 
Purchase Trust

6  52 606 994  5 873 012  52 606 994  5 873 012

Loan to Arrowhead Charitable Trust 7  -   -   134 010 000  -  
Derivative instruments 19  7 678 759  -   7 678 759  -  

Current assets  43 887 729  216 695 754  43 887 729  216 695 754
Trade and other receivables 8  18 503 683  26 559 158  18 503 683  26 559 158 
Cash and cash equivalents 9  25 384 046  190 136 596  25 384 046  190 136 596 

Non current assets held for sale 4  12 000 000  13 952 000  12 000 000  13 952 000

Total assets  3 218 077 707 2 459 563 801  3 352 087 707 2 459 563 801

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders interest  500 906 237  190 268 806  502 417 852  190 268 806
Stated capital 10  139  134  141 134
Reserves  500 906 098  190 268 672  502 417 711  190 268 672

Non current liabilities - debentures 11  1 890 588 787 1 460 144 837  2 023 087 173 1 460 144 837

Linked unitholders interest  2 391 495 024 1 650 413 643  2 525 505 025 1 650 413 643

Other non current liabilities  718 058 570  539 419 827  718 058 570  539 419 827
Secured financial liabilities 12  718 058 570  445 697 663  718 058 570  445 697 663
Deferred taxation 13  -   93 722 164  -   93 722 164

Current liabilities  108 524 112  269 730 331  108 524 112  269 730 331
Trade and other payables 14  47 988 358  57 853 455  47 988 358  57 853 455 
Secured financial liabilities 12  -    167 494 522  -    167 494 522 
Unitholders for distribution  60 535 754  44 382 354  60 535 754  44 382 354 

Total equity and liabilities  3 218 077 707 2 459 563 801  3 352 087 707 2 459 563 801

Number of A linked units in issue  197 395 479  170 562 166  206 395 479  170 562 166 
Number of B linked units in issue  197 395 479  170 562 166  206 395 479  170 562 166 
Net asset value per A and B linked units  6,06  4,84  6,12  4,84 
Net asset value per A and B linked units 
(excluding deferred taxation)

 6,06  5,11  6,12  5,11 

Gearing ratio  23,06  27,42  23,06  27,42 
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Group Company
Notes 2013 2012 2013 2012

R R R R

Property portfolio revenue
Contractual rental income  423 246 388  259 735 041  423 246 388  259 735 041 
Straight line rental income accrual  20 467 648  10 490 787  20 467 648  10 490 787 
Total revenue  443 714 036  270 225 828  443 714 036  270 225 828 
Operating costs  (147 464 731)  (92 567 562)  (147 464 731)  (92 567 562)
Administration costs  (14 928 795)  (14 310 632)  (14 928 795)  (14 310 632)
Sign on bonuses  -   (13 545 607)  -    (13 545 607)
Net operating profit 15  281 320 511  149 802 027  281 320 511  149 802 027 
Changes in fair values 17  152 056 052  231 377 266  152 056 052  231 377 266 
Profit from operations  433 376 563  381 179 293  433 376 563  381 179 293 
Net finance income/(charges) 18  1 919 529  (6 121 922)  8 617 843  (6 121 922)
Finance charges  (54 810 774)  (53 746 891)  (54 810 774)  (53 746 891)
Amortisation of debenture premium  44 391 560  21 840 788  45 903 174  21 840 788 
Interest received  12 338 743  25 784 181  17 525 443  25 784 181 
Profit before debenture interest and 
taxation

 435 296 092  375 057 371  441 994 406  375 057 371 

Debenture interest  (218 380 831) (128 531 615)  (223 567 531) (128 531 615)
Profit before taxation  216 915 261  246 525 756  218 426 875  246 525 756 
Taxation 20  93 722 164  (58 022 562)  93 722 164  (58 022 562)
Total comprehensive income for the year  310 637 425  188 503 194  312 149 039  188 503 194 

statement of COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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statement of changes in equity

Company
Stated capital Reserves Total

R R R

Balance at 5 January 2011  -    -    -   
Issue of shares  100  -    100 
Total comprehensive income for the year  -    1 765 478  1 765 478 
Balance at 30 September 2011  100  1 765 478  1 765 578 
Issue of shares 34 - 34
Total comprehensive income for the year  -    188 503 194  188 503 194 
Balance at 30 September 2012  134  190 268 672  190 268 807 
Issue of shares 7 - 7
Total comprehensive income for the year  -    312 149 039  312 149 039 
Balance at 30 September 2013  141  502 417 711  502 417 853 

Group
Stated Capital Reserves Total

R R R

Balance at 5 January 2011  -    -    -   
Issue of shares  100  -    100 
Total comprehensive income for the year  -    1 765 478  1 765 478 
Balance at 30 September 2011  100  1 765 478  1 765 578 
Issue of shares 34 - 34
Total comprehensive income for the year  -    188 503 194  188 503 194 
Balance at 30 September 2012  134  190 268 672  190 268 807 
Issue of shares 5 - 5
Total comprehensive income for the year  -    310 637 425  310 637 425 
Balance at 30 September 2013  139  500 906 098  500 906 237 
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statement of cash flows

Group Company
Notes 2013 2012 2013 2012

R R R R

Net cash generated from operating 
activities

 20 821 086  65 927 972  20 821 086  65 927 972 

Cash generated from operations 22.2  269 826 812  178 719 217  269 826 812  178 719 217 
Finance charges paid (54 810 774) (53 746 891) (54 810 774) (53 746 891)
Finance income received 8 032 480 25 104 907 13 219 180 25 104 907
Debenture interest paid  (202 227 432)  (84 149 261)  (207 414 132)  (84 149 261)

Net cash utilised in investing activities  (543 849 755) (307 550 814)  (543 849 755) (307 550 814)
Net acquisition of investment property  (530 538 425) (289 087 403)  (530 538 425) (289 087 403)
Capital expenditure, improvements, tenant 
installations and lease commissions

 (17 325 376)  (18 479 928)  (17 325 376)  (18 479 928)

Acquisition of property, plant and 
equipment 

 (2 764)  (984 599)  (2 764)  (984 599)

Repayment of loans to directors  4 016 810  1 001 116  4 016 810  1 001 116 

Net cash generated from financing 
activities

 358 276 118  429 952 988  358 276 118  429 952 988 

Proceeds from issue of linked units  253 923 072  457 993 105  253 923 072  457 993 105 
Net movement in financial liabilities  104 353 046  (28 040 117)  104 353 046  (28 040 117)

Net movement in cash and cash equivalents  (164 752 550)  188 330 146  (164 752 550)  188 330 146 
Cash and cash equivalents at the  
beginning of the year

 190 136 596  1 806 450  190 136 596  1 806 450 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end  
of the year

9  25 384 046  190 136 596  25 384 046  190 136 596 

The principal non cash flow transactions 
are the issue of linked units for 
investment properties amounting to R167 
million, the issue of linked units to the 
participants of the Arrowhead Unit Purchase 
Trust of R54 million and the issue of 
linked units to the Arrowhead Charitable 
Trust of R134 million. 
 
The gross inflow of cash relating to 
investment properties during the period 
was immaterial and has thus been netted 
off against the gross outflows on the 
acquisition of new investment properties.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Accounting Policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (“IFRS”), SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee, 
the JSE Listing Requirements and the requirements of the South African Companies Act, No 71 of 2008 
as amended.

The financial statements are prepared on the historic cost basis, except for investment properties 
which are carried at fair value, and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. 
These accounting policies have been applied consistently with the previous year other than the 
adoption of the revised IAS 1 and the revised IAS 12 which became effective in the current period.

1.1 Basis of consolidation

The group financial statements include those of the holding company and enterprises controlled by the 
company. Control is achieved when the company has the power to govern the financial and operating 
policies of an investee enterprise. The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, 
liabilities, income, expenses and cash flows of the group and all entities controlled by the group. 
Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised profits or losses between group companies are 
eliminated on consolidation.

1.2 Treasury linked units

Where an entity under the group’s control holds linked units in the holding company, the consideration 
paid to acquire these units is deducted from linked unitholders’ equity as treasury stock. When these 
units are sold or reissued, any consideration received is included in linked unitholders’ equity.

1.3 Financial instruments

Financial instruments are contracts that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial instruments are recognised on the statement of financial position when the group becomes 
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The group initially recognises a financial 
instrument as a financial asset, a financial liability or as an equity instrument in accordance with 
the substance of the contractual arrangement.
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The group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a 
transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are 
transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the group 
is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

The group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, 
cancelled or expired.

Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, these instruments are measured as follows:

Financial assets

 ■ Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivable are initially recognised at fair value including transaction costs and 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Trade and 
other receivables are presented net of an allowance for impairment. The allowance for impairment 
is raised based on the difference between the carrying value of the receivables and the present 
value of expected future cash flows using the discount rate calculated at initial recognition. 
Movements in the provision are recognised in profit or loss. Unrecoverable amounts are written 
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of previously written off amounts are 
credited to profit or loss.

 ■ Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Cash and cash equivalents are 
highly liquid, short term investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash. These 
investments are subject to insignificant risk in change in value. Cash and cash equivalents are 
measured at amortised cost that approximates fair value.

 ■ Loans to participants of the Arrowhead Unit Purchase Trust

Loans to participants of the Arrowhead Unit Purchase Trust consist of linked units issued to the 
directors and employees of Arrowhead at market value. The loans incur interest at the effective 
interest rates incurred on the secured financial liabilities and is repayable with the quarterly 
distributions.

 ■ Derivative instrument

The group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to interest rate risks 
arising from its financing activities. Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised 
and subsequently measured at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is 
recognised in profit or loss. The group holds interest rate swaps. The fair value of the interest 
rate swap is the estimated amount that the group would receive or pay to terminate the swap at 
the reporting date, taking into account current interest rates and the current creditworthiness 
of the swap counterparties.

Financial liabilities

 ■ Debentures

Debentures are designated as “at fair value through profit or loss” financial liabilities, with 
gains or losses being recognised in profit or loss. Debentures are initially recognised at fair 
value adjusted for transaction cost, which is the nominal value less debenture discount, and 
subsequently measured at fair value. 

Debenture interest is recognised in profit or loss in the quarter in which it occurs.

Debenture premium on debentures are recognised in equity.
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 ■ Unitholders for distribution

Debenture interest is recognised in the period in which it occurs through profit and loss. Net 
profits available after subtracting cost for maintaining the revenue enhancing properties are 
paid to linked units holders on the number of linked units in issue based on a specific applied 
formula implemented by the directors of the group.

 ■ Interest bearing borrowings

Interest bearing borrowings are recognised at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 
method. Any raising costs that are incurred on interest bearing borrowings are offset against the 
debt balance and recognised as additional interest using the effective interest rate method over 
the term of the loan.

The finance cost is recognised in profit and loss in the period in which it accrues.

 ■ Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at cost and subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest rate method, with gains or losses being recognised in profit 
or loss.

Offset

 ■ Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement 
of financial position when the group has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised 
amounts, and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously.

Where the carrying amounts of short term financial instruments carried at amortised cost approximate 
their amortised cost value and the impact of discounting is not considered to be material, no 
discounting is applied.

1.4 Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held for the purpose of earning rental income and for capital 
appreciation. Investment properties are initially recorded at cost and include transaction costs on 
acquisition. Subsequent expenditure to add to or replace a part of the property is capitalised at 
cost. The replacement parts are written off and expensed in profit and loss.

Investment property are valued annually and adjusted to fair value as at statement of financial 
position date.

Independent valuations are obtained on a rotational basis, ensuring that every property is valued at 
least once every three years by an external independent valuer. The remaining properties are valued 
by the directors annually on an open market basis.

The proposed net profit budget relating to each internally valued property for the following year is 
used in conjunction with a discounted cash flow module to calculate the fair value adjustment value 
of the investment property. The discount, yield and reversion rate used in the discounted cash flow 
calculation reflects the risks anticipated in the geographical area.

Any gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of the investment property is included in 
net profit for the year.
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Gains and losses on the disposal of investment properties are recognised in net profit and are 
calculated as the difference between the sale price and the carrying value of the property.

1.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight line basis over the current useful lives 
of the assets.  The estimated useful lives of the assets are:

 ■ Computer equipment (3 years)

 ■ Furniture, fittings and equipment (3 years)

The useful lives and residual values are reassesed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted 
if necessary.

The depreciation on property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss in the year in 
which it occurred.

The gain or loss on property, plant and equipment is determined by subtracting the carrying value from 
the net disposal proceeds on date of sale. The gain or loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income and is not classified as revenue.

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of equipment is capitalised when it is probable that future 
economic benefits will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably. All other subsequent 
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which it incurred.

1.6 Revenue recognition

Property portfolio revenue

 ■ Property portfolio revenue comprises operating lease income and operating cost recoveries from 
the letting of investment properties. Operating lease income is recognised on a straight-line 
basis over the term of the lease. Operating cost recoveries are recognised two months in arrears 
from incurring the expense. Contingent rents (turnover rentals) are included in revenue when the 
amount can be reliable measured.

Interest income

 ■ Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest rate method.

Where linked units (ie. debentures and stated capital) are issued between distribution dates, the 
resulting antecedent interest inherent in the issue price of the linked units is recognised as 
interest income on receipt.

1.7 Taxation

Taxation comprises current and deferred taxation. 
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The charge for current tax is based on the results for the period as adjusted for items which are 
non-assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantially 
enacted at reporting date.

Deferred income tax is provided using the comprehensive liability method for all temporary differences 
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying values for financial 
reporting purposes, other than temporary differences arising on the fair value movements in investment 
properties, including any movement in the lease income straight lining adjustment.

In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and 
deferred taxation assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.  Such assets and liabilities 
are not recognised if the temporary difference arose as a result of a transaction, other than a 
business combination, that does not impact accounting or taxable profit or loss.

Deferred taxation – Deferred tax assets are raised to the extent that it is probable that future 
taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be 
utilised. Assessment of future taxable profit is performed at every reporting date, in the form of 
future cash flows using a suitable growth rate. Refer note 13 for more detail on deferred taxation.

Taxation - There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is 
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax 
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome 
of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will 
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which the determination is made.

1.8 Impairment

The carrying value of assets is reviewed for impairment at each reporting date. Assets are impaired 
when events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying value may not be recoverable.

If such indication exists and where carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the 
assets are written down to their recoverable amounts.

Recoverable amounts are determined as the higher of fair value less costs to sell or value in 
use.  Impairment losses and the reversal of impairment losses are recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment 
loss had been recognised.

1.9 Employee short-term benefits

The cost of all short-term employee benefits is recognised during the period in which the employees 
render the related service. Short-term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis. The 
accrual for employee entitlements to salaries, bonuses and annual leave represents the amount which 
the group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay as a result of the employees’ services 
provided up to the reporting date.
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1.10 Letting costs

Installations and lease commissions are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation.  Depreciation 
is provided to write down the cost, less residual value, by equal instalments over the period of the 
lease.

1.11 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the development or acquisition of qualifying 
assets are capitalised to the cost of that asset until such time as it is substantially ready for 
its intended use. The capitalisation rate is arrived at by reference to the actual rate payable. All 
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

1.12 Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the company that engages in business activities from which 
it may earn revenues and incur expenses. The operating results are reviewed regularly by executive 
management to make decisions about and to assess the performance of the segment.

On a primary basis the operations are organised into geographical major business segments.

The operating segments are based on the International Financial Reporting Standards.

1.13 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets that are expected to be recovered primarily through sale rather than continuing 
use, are classified as held for sale. Investment Properties classified as held for sale are measured 
in terms of IAS 40 – ‘Investment Properties’ at fair value with gains and losses on subsequent 
measurement being recognised in profit or loss.

1.14 Stated capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. External costs directly attributable to the issue of new 
shares as shown as a deduction in equity from the proceeds.
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1.15 Key estimates and assumptions

Estimates and assumptions, an integral part of financial reporting, have an impact on the amounts 
reported for the company’s assets, liabilities income and expenses. Judgment in these areas is based 
on historical experience and reasonable expectations relating to future events. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates. Information on the key estimations and uncertainties that have the 
most significant effect on amounts recognised are set out in the following notes to the financial 
statements:

 ■ Accounting policies – notes 1.6, 1.9 and 1.10
 ■ Investment property valuation – note 2
 ■ Impairment of receivables – note 8
 ■ Deferred taxation – note 13

A further matter that required key judgment in the preparation of these annual financial statements 
was:

Payment for the acquisition of investment properties

In the current year, the acquisitions of investment properties were treated as property acquisitions 
in terms of IAS 40 – ‘Investment Properties’.  In the opinion of the directors these properties did not 
constitute a business as defined in terms of IFRS 3, as there were not adequate processes identified 
with these properties to warrant classification as businesses.

Standards and interpretations applicable to the company not yet effective

There are new or revised accounting standards and interpretations in issue that are not yet effective. 
These include the following standards and interpretations that are material to the business and 
may have an impact on future financial statements, or those for which the impact has not yet been 
assessed. These standards were not early adopted.

Standard Details of amendment Annual periods 
beginning on or 

after

IFRS 7: Financial 
Instruments: 
Disclosures

Amendments require entities to disclose gross amounts subject 
to rights of set-off, amounts set off in accordance with the 
accounting standards followed, and the related net credit 
exposure. This information will help investors understand the 
extent to which an entity has set off in its balance sheet 
and the effects of rights of set-off on the entity’s rights 
and obligations.

1 January 2013

IFRS 9: Financial 
Instruments

New standard that forms the first part of a three part 
project to replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition 
and Measurement.

1 January 2015

IFRS 10: Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

New standard that replaces the consolidation requirements 
in SIC-12 Consolidation—Special Purpose Entities and IAS 27 
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. Standard 
builds on existing principles by identifying the concept of 
control as the determining factor in whether an entity should 
be included within the consolidated financial statements of 
the parent company and provides additional guidance to assist 
in the determination of control where this is difficult to 
assess.

1 January 2013
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Amendments to the transition guidance of IFRS 10 Consolidated 
Financial Statements, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and IFRS 12 
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, thus limiting the 
requirements to provide adjusted comparative information.

1 January 2013

IFRS 10  exception  to  the  principle  that  all subsidiaries 
must be consolidated. Entities meeting the definition of 
‘Investment Entities’ must be accounted for at fair value 
under IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, or IAS 39, Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

1 January 2014

IFRS 11: Joint 
Arrangements

New standard that deals with the accounting for joint 
arrangements and focuses on the rights and obligations of the 
arrangement, rather than its legal form. Standard requires 
a single method for accounting for interests in jointly 
controlled entities.

1 January 2013

Amendments to the transition guidance of IFRS 10 Consolidated 
Financial Statements, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and IFRS 12 
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, thus limiting the 
requirements to provide adjusted comparative information.

1 January 2013

IFRS 12: Disclosure 
of Interests in Other 
Entities

New and comprehensive standard on disclosure requirements for 
all forms of interests in other entities, including joint 
arrangements, associates, special purpose vehicles and other 
off balance sheet vehicles.

1 January 2013

Amendments to the transition guidance of IFRS 10 Consolidated 
Financial Statements, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and IFRS 12 
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, thus limiting the 
requirements to provide adjusted comparative information.

1 January 2013

New disclosures required for Investment Entities (as defined 
in IFRS 10).

1 January 2014

IFRS 13: Fair Value 
Measurement

New guidance on fair value measurement and disclosure 
requirements

1 January 2013

IAS 1: Presentation 
of Financial 
Statements

Clarification of statement of changes in equity. 1 January 2011

New requirements to group together items within OCI that may 
be reclassified to the profit or loss section of the income 
statement in order to facilitate the assessment of their 
impact on the overall performance of an entity.

1 July 2012

Annual Improvements 2009–2011 Cycle: Amendments clarifying 
the requirements for comparative information including 
minimum and additional comparative information required.

1 January 2013

IAS 12: Income Taxes Rebuttable presumption introduced that an investment property 
will be recovered in its entirety through sale.

1 January 2012

IAS 16: Property, 
Plant and Equipment

Annual Improvements 2009–2011 Cycle: Amendments to the 
recognition and classification of servicing equipment.

1 January 2013

IAS 19: Employee 
Benefits

Amendments to the accounting for current and future obligations 
resulting from the provision of defined benefit plans.

1 January 2013
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IAS 27: Consolidated 
and Separate 
Financial Statements

Consequential amendments resulting from the issue of IFRS 
10, 11 and 12.

1 January 2013

Requirement to account for interests in Investment Entities’ 
at fair value under IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, or IAS 39, 
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, in the 
separate financial statements of a parent.

1 January 2014

IAS 28: Investments 
in Associates

Consequential amendments resulting from the issue of IFRS 
10, 11 and 12.

1 January 2013

IAS 32: Financial 
Instruments 
Presentation

Amendments require entities to disclose gross amounts subject 
to rights of set-off, amounts set off in accordance with the 
accounting standards followed, and the related net credit 
exposure. This information will help investors understand the 
extent to which an entity has set off in its balance sheet 
and the effects of rights of set-off on the entity’s rights 
and obligations.

1 January 2013

Annual Improvements 2009–2011 Cycle: Amendments to clarify the 
tax effect of distribution to holders of equity instruments.

1 January 2013

IAS 34: Interim 
Financial Reporting

Clarification of disclosure requirements around significant 
events and transactions including financial instruments.

1 January 2011

Annual Improvements 2009–2011 Cycle: Amendments to improve 
the disclosures for interim financial reporting and segment 
information for total assets and liabilities.

1 January 2013

IAS 36 Impairment of 
Assets

The amendment to IAS 36 clarifies the required disclosures of 
information about the recoverable amount of impaired assets 
if that amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal.

1 January 2014

The directors have not yet determined what the impact of these new standards and interpretation on 
the company will be.
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2. Fair value of property portfolio

 GROUP 2013 GROUP 2012 COMPANY 2013 COMPANY 2012

R R R R

Net carrying value
Cost  2 926 329 848  1 973 083 013  2 926 329 848  1 973 083 013 
Fair value surplus  144 121 834  238 636 028  144 121 834  238 636 028 

 3 070 451 681  2 211 719 041  3 070 451 681  2 211 719 041 
Movement for the year
Investment properties at the  
beginning of year

 2 211 719 041  1 440 591 100  2 211 719 041  1 440 591 100 

(Derecognition)/arising on right  
to use asset

 -    
(1 440 591 100)

 -    
(1 440 591 100)

Disposal of investment property  (11 943 845)  -    (11 943 845)  -   
Acquisitions  723 788 172  1 972 963 969  723 788 172  1 972 963 969 
Improvements to buildings  10 484 399  14 177 135  10 484 399  14 177 135 
Transfer to held for sale (note 4)  (12 000 000)  (13 952 000)  (12 000 000)  (13 952 000)
Change in fair value  144 121 834  231 377 266  144 121 834  231 377 266 

Capital expenditure, tenant 
installations and lease commissions

 4 282 081  7 152 671  4 282 081  7 152 671 

- Capitalised  6 840 978  8 269 817  6 840 978  8 269 817 
- Amortised  (2 558 896)  (1 117 146)  (2 558 896)  (1 117 146)

Balance at the end of the year  3 070 451 681  2 211 719 041  3 070 451 681  2 211 719 041

Reconciliation to valuation
Investment properties carrying amount  3 070 451 681  2 211 719 041  3 070 451 681  2 211 719 041 
Straight line lease accrual  30 958 435  10 490 787  30 958 435  10 490 787 
Investment properties held for sale  12 000 000  13 952 000  12 000 000  13 952 000 

Investment properties per valuations  3 113 410 116  2 236 161 828  3 113 410 116  2 236 161 828

Full details of investment properties owned by the company are contained in the register of 
investment properties which is open for inspection by members at the registered office of the 
company.

In terms of the accounting policy, the portfolio is valued annually. One third of the properties 
were valued by JHI Properties, a registered valuer in terms of Section 19 of the Property Valuers 
Professional Act (Act No 47 of 2000). The remaining properties were valued by the directors.

The valuations were performed using the discounted cash flow methodology. This method is based 
on an open market basis with consideration given to the future earnings potential and applying an 
appropriate capitalisation rate to the property which range between 9% and 13%.

Investment properties are encumbered as set out in note 12.
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3. Straight line rental income accrual

 GROUP 2013 GROUP 2012 COMPANY 2013 COMPANY 2012

R R R R

Balance at the beginning of the year  10 490 787  -    10 490 787  -   
Movement for the year  20 467 648  10 490 787  20 467 648  10 490 787 
Balance at the end of the year  30 958 435  10 490 787  30 958 435  10 490 787 

4. Non current assets held for sale

 GROUP 2013 GROUP 2012 COMPANY 2013 COMPANY 2012

R R R R

This consists of investment property 
that will be recovered through sale in 
the next financial year.
The buildings comprise of the 
following:
Cadbury building  -    9 952 000  -    9 952 000 
Grotto Mews building  -    2 500 000  -    2 500 000 
106 Mark Street  -    1 500 000  -    1 500 000 
Galileo Building  12 000 000  -    12 000 000  -   

 12 000 000  13 952 000  12 000 000  13 952 000
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5. Property, plant and equipment

 GROUP 2013 GROUP 2012 COMPANY 2013 COMPANY 2012

R R R R

188 133 315 169 188 133 315 169
Cost 389 424           386 660  389 424  386 660 
Accumulated depreciation  (201 291)  (71 491)  (201 291)  (71 491)

Furniture, fittings and equipment  305 976  518 038  305 976  518 038 
Cost  636 687  636 687  636 687  636 687 
Accumulated depreciation  (330 711)  (118 649)  (330 711)  (118 649)

 494 109  833 207  494 109  833 207

Movement for the year
Balance at beginning of year  833 207  38 748  833 207  38 748 
Acquisitions  2 764  984 599  2 764  984 599 
Computer equipment  2 764  347 912  2 764  347 912 
Furniture, fittings and equipment  -    636 687  -    636 687 

Depreciation  (341 862)  (190 140)  (341 862)  (190 140)
Computer equipment  (129 800)  (71 491)  (129 800)  (71 491)
Furniture, fittings and equipment  (212 062)  (118 649)  (212 062)  (118 649)

 494 109  833 207  494 109  833 207
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6. Loans to participants of the Arrowhead Unit Purchase Trust

 GROUP 2013 GROUP 2012 COMPANY 2013 COMPANY 2012

R R R R

Balance at the beginning of the year  7 805 522  -    7 805 522  -   
Advances  54 121 855  8 127 364  54 121 855  8 127 364 
Interest charged on loans  4 306 278  679 274  4 306 278  679 274 
Repayments  (6 257 170)  (1 001 116)  (6 257 170)  (1 001 116)
Balance at the end of the year  59 976 485  7 805 522  59 976 485  7 805 522 

Total amount owing  59 976 485  7 805 522  59 976 485  7 805 522 
Less : Repayable in the next year 
- transferred to trade and other 
receivables

 (7 369 491)  (1 932 510)  (7 369 491)  (1 932 510)

Long term portion  52 606 994  5 873 012  52 606 994  5 873 012 

Owing by the following directors:

G. Leissner - Issued 992 063 A linked 
units at R6,55 and 992 063 B linked 
units at R6,05 on 2012-12-07

 15 140 417  3 289 734  15 140 417  3 289 734 

M.Kaplan - Issued 1 587 302 A linked 
units at R6,55 and 1 587 302 B linked 
units at R6,05 on 2012-12-07

 22 720 955  3 289 734  22 720 955  3 289 734 

I.Suleman - Issued 1 388 889 A linked 
units at R6,55 and 1 388 889 B linked 
units at R6,05 on 2012-12-07

 18 254 307  1 226 054  18 254 307  1 226 054 

 56 115 679  7 805 522  56 115 679  7 805 522 

Owing by the following employees:

M. Machanik - Issued 100 000 A linked 
units at R7,35 and 100 000 B linked 
units at R7,22 on 2013-03-01

 1 474 879  -    1 474 879  -   

D. Mayers - Issued 161 771 A linked 
units at R7,35 and 161 771 B linked 
units at R7,22 on 2013-03-01

 2 385 927  -    2 385 927  -   

 3 860 806  -    3 860 806  -   

 59 976 485  7 805 522  59 976 485  7 805 522

The loans were granted to the executive directors and employees for the purpose of subscribing for 
linked units in the group as per the Arrowhead Unit Purchase Trust and in terms of the Companies 
Act.

The linked units have pledged as security against the loans.

The loans bear interest at a variable rate of 8.17 % pa and the loans are repayable by 30 September 
2017.

The distribution received on the linked units are used to repay the loans.
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7. Arrowhead Charitable Trust

COMPANY 2013 COMPANY 2012

R R

Balance begining of the year  -    -   
Advances  134 010 000  -   
Interest charged on loans  5 186 700  -   
Repayments  (5 186 700)  -   
Balance at the end of the year  134 010 000  -   

Total amount owing  134 010 000  -   
Less : Repayable in the next year 
- transferred to trade and other 
receivables

 -    -   

Long term portion  134 010 000  -   

Issued 9 000 000 A linked units at 
R7,57 on 2013-04-24
Issued 9 000 000 B linked units at 
R7,32 on 2013-04-24

The total subscription price payable 
for the subscription units will be 
financed by the trust loan.

The trust loan is secured by a pledge 
and cession in securitatem debiti 
of the subscription units and is 
repayable out of the proceeds of the 
sale by the Arrowhead Charitable Trust 
of the subscription units.

The interest on the trust loan 
is equivalent to the interest 
distribution received on the 
subscription units.

The trust loan will be repaid in 
full on the earlier of the fifth 
anniversary of the subscription date 
and/or the date on which the trust and 
Arrowhead agree in writing that the 
trust loan will be repaid.
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8. Trade and other receivables

 GROUP 2013 GROUP 2012 COMPANY 2013 COMPANY 2012

R R R R

Trade receivables  7 547 416  22 230 156  7 547 416  22 230 156 
Impairments  (2 856 624)  (1 619 139)  (2 856 624)  (1 619 139)

4 690 792  20 611 017  4 690 792  20 611 017 
Short term portion of loans receivable  7 369 491  1 932 510  7 369 491  1 932 510 
Municipal deposits  5 606 991  3 120 157  5 606 991  3 120 157 
Prepayments  836 409  895 474  836 409  895 474 

 18 503 683  26 559 158  18 503 683  26 559 158

Ageing of receivables past due but not 
impaired

As at 30 September 2013 trade 
receivables of R667 100 (2012 : R356, 
763) were past due but not impaired

30 days  276 478  -    276 478  -   
60 days  116 681  291 733  116 681  291 733 
90 days  16 444  13 890  16 444  13 890 
120+ days  257 498  51 140  257 498  51 140 
Total  667 101  356 763  667 101  356 763 

Ageing of impaired receivables

Current  467 372  428 108  467 372  428 108 
30 days  535 277  369 327  535 277  369 327 
60 days  294 573  221 543  294 573  221 543 
90 days  187 532  113 135  187 532  113 135 
120+ days  1 371 870  487 026  1 371 870  487 026 
Total  2 856 624  1 619 139  2 856 624  1 619 139 

Movement on the impairment of trade 
receivables

Balance at the beginning of the year  1 619 139  -    1 619 139  -   
Impairment losses recognised on 
receivables

 1 237 485  1 619 139  1 237 485  1 619 139 

Balance at the end of the year  2 856 624  1 619 139  2 856 624  1 619 139 

The allowance for doubtful debts has 
been determined on a tenant by tenant 
basis.

Receivables past due but not impaired 
are believed collectible due to the 
nature of the tenant and payment 
history.
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9. Cash and cash equivalents

 GROUP 2013 GROUP 2012 COMPANY 2013 COMPANY 2012

R R R R

For purposes of the cash flow 
statement, cash and cash equivalents 
comprise:

Bank balances  25 384 046  190 136 596  25 384 046  190 136 596

Cash is invested with Standard Bank 
and First National Bank.

10. Stated capital

 GROUP 2013 GROUP 2012 COMPANY 2013 COMPANY 2012

R R R R

Authorised

2 000 000 000 ordinary no par value 
units

Issued

412 790 958 (2012 : 341 124 332) 
ordinary shares at 0.0000001 cent each

 134  100  134  100

Shared issued during 
the year

5 34 7 34

139 134 141 134

Movement for the year

Balance at the beginning of the year 341 124 432  100 341 124 432  100 
Shares issued during the year 53 666 526  341 124 332  71 666 526   341 124 332   
Balance at the end of the year  394 790 958 341 124 432 412 790 958 341 124 432 

The unissued shares are under the 
control of the directors. This 
authority remains in force until the 
next annual general meeting of the 
company on 14 January 2014.

Each share is irrevocably linked 
to one A debenture, comprising one 
A linked unit, or one B debenture, 
comprising one B linked unit.
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11. Debentures

 GROUP 2013 GROUP 2012 COMPANY 2013 COMPANY 2012

R R R R

Issued 

[197 395 479 (2012 : 170 562 166)
(Group)][206 395 479 
(2012 : 170 562 166)(Company)  
A debentures at R 1.0176]

 200 869 640  173 564 060  210 028 040  173 564 060 

[197 395 479 (2012 : 170 562 166)
(Group)][206 395 479 
(2012 : 170 562 166)(Company) 
B debentures at R 1.0176]

 200 869 640  173 564 060  210 028 040  173 564 060 

Debenture premium  1 505 473 638  1 125 967 808  1 619 655 224  1 125 967 808 
    on debentures issued  1 571 705 985  1 147 808 596  1 687 399 185  1 147 808 596 
    amortisation  (66 232 347)  (21 840 787)  (67 743 961)  (21 840 787)
Debenture issue expenses  (16 624 130)  (12 951 091)  (16 624 130)  (12 951 091)

 1 890 588 787  1 460 144 838  2 023 087 174  1 460 144 838

Movement for the year

Balance at the beginning of the year  1 460 144 838  -    1 460 144 838  -   
Debentures issued during the year  612 518 548  1 494 936 716  612 518 548  1 494 936 716
Issue to Arrowhead Charitable Trust (134 010 000) - - -
Amortisation of debenture premium  (44 391 560)  (21 840 787)  (45 903 174)  (21 840 787)
Debenture issue expenses  (3 673 039)  (12 951 091)  (3 673 039)  (12 951 091)
Balance at the end of the year  1 890 588 787  1 460 144 838  2 023 087 174  1 460 144 838

The debentures are unsecured and 
subordinated in favour of the 
unsubordinated creditors of the 
company.

As the company is obligated to pay 
interest on the debentures, which 
interest is calculated in terms of a 
distributable earnings formula and 
accrues to the debenture holder every 
three months, the instrument has been 
classified as a liability.

The debentures are redeemable at the 
instance of the debenture holder by 
special resolution after 31 August 
2041 or 10th anniversary following 31 
August 2041 or every 10th anniversary 
following 31 August 2051.
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12. Secured financial liabilities

 GROUP 2013 GROUP 2012 COMPANY 2013 COMPANY 2012

R R R R

Standard Bank

Facility 1 - loan number 148102  387 284 437  387 284 437  387 284 437  387 284 437

Secured by a mortgage bond over 
investment properties,bears interest 
at a fixed rate of 9.57 % and is 
repayable on 30 September 2016.

Facility 1 - loan number 154824  92 715 563  21 768 027  92 715 563  21 768 027

Secured by a mortgage bond over 
investment properties, bears interest 
at a variable rate linked to 3 months 
JIBAR plus 2.54 % and is repayable on 
30 September 2016.

Facility 2 - loan number 14 8147  71 762 010  38 698 482  71 762 010  38 698 482

Secured by a mortgage bond over 
investment properties, bears interest 
at a variable rate linked to prime 
less 1.1 % and is repayable on  
31 March 2018.

Facility 3 - loan number 14 8164  167 836 522  167 494 522  167 836 522  167 494 522

Secured by a mortgage bond over 
investment properties, bears interest 
at a variable rate linked to 3 months 
JIBAR plus 3.45 % and is repayable on 
31 March 2018.

Facility has been renegotiated during 
the 2013 financial year.

Total debt  719 598 532  615 245 468  719 598 532  615 245 468 
Less: deferred finance 
costs

 (1 539 962)  (2 053 283)  (1 539 962)  (2 053 283)

Finance costs incurred 
during the year

 (2 053 283)  (2 508 000)  (2 053 283)  (2 508 000)

Amortisation for the 
year

 513 321  454 717  513 321  454 717 

 718 058 570  613 192 185  718 058 570  613 192 185

Long term portion  718 058 570  445 697 663  718 058 570  445 697 663
Short term portion  -   167 494 522  -   167 494 522

 718 058 570  613 192 185  718 058 570  613 192 185
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12. Secured financial liabilities (continued)

 GROUP 2013 GROUP 2012 COMPANY 2013 COMPANY 2012

R R R R

The above are secured over investment properties valued at R1,078 billion.

At year end, the company’s unutilised loan facilities amounted to R232 million (2012 : R67 million), 
the gearing ratio was 23% (2012 : 28%) and the average all inclusive rate of interest is 8.17% 
(2012 : 8.13%).

13. Deferred taxation

 GROUP 2013 GROUP 2012 COMPANY 2013 COMPANY 2012

R R R R

Arising on the revaluation of:

Investment property  -    94 181 260  -    94 181 260 
Other timing differences  -    (459 096)  -    (459 096)

 -    93 722 164  -    93 722 164 

Movement for the year

Balance at beginning of year  93 722 164  -    93 722 164  -   
Arising on acquisition of investment 
property 

 35 699 601  35 699 601 

Per statement of comprehensive income  (93 722 164)  58 022 563  (93 722 164)  58 022 563 
Adjustment to rate of CGT  12 137 864  12 137 864 
Change in fair value of investment 
property

 (91 243 840)  43 406 375  (91 243 840)  43 406 375 

Straight line rental income accrual  (2 937 420)  2 937 420  (2 937 420)  2 937 420 
Other timing differences  459 096  (459 096)  459 096  (459 096)

 -  93 722 164  -  93 722 164 

With effect from 1 October 2013, the company converted to a Real Estate Investment Trust (“REIT”) 
resulting in capital gains taxation no longer being applicable on the sale of investment properties 
in terms of section 25BB of the Income Tax Act. The deferred tax rate applicable to investment 
property at the sale rate will therefore be nil %. Consequently no deferred tax was raised on the 
fair value adjustement on investment property.
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14. Trade and other payables

 GROUP 2013 GROUP 2012 COMPANY 2013 COMPANY 2012

R R R R

Rental income received in advance  1 483 669  2 291 667  1 483 669  2 291 667 
Value added taxation  379 388  2 721 713  379 388  2 721 713 
Tenant deposits  17 661 178  12 531 726  17 661 178  12 531 726 
Accrued expenses  28 464 123  40 305 883  28 464 123  40 305 883 
Other payables  -    2 466  -    2 466 

47 988 358 57 853 455 47 988 358 57 853 455

15. Net operating profit

 GROUP 2013 GROUP 2012 COMPANY 2013 COMPANY 2012

R R R R

Net operating profit includes the 
following items:

Charges

Audit fees  450 000  452 500  450 000  452 500 
Amortisation of structuring fee  513 321  454 717  513 321  454 717 
Depreciation  341 862  190 140  341 862  190 140 
Professional services fee  2 096 191  2 366 462  2 096 191  2 366 462 
Property management fees  15 652 511  9 455 859  15 652 511  9 455 859 
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16. Directors’ emoluments

 GROUP 2013 GROUP 2012 COMPANY 2013 COMPANY 2012

R R R R

Fees paid to executive directors

Annual salaries  6 770 000  6 250 000  6 770 000  6 250 000

- Gerald Leissner  2 650 000  2 500 000  2 650 000  2 500 000 
- Mark Kaplan  2 120 000  2 000 000  2 120 000  2 000 000 
- Imraan Suleman  2 000 000  1 750 000  2 000 000  1 750 000 

Annual performance bonus  -   1 250 000  -   1 250 000

- Gerald Leissner  -    1 250 000  -    1 250 000 
- Mark Kaplan  -    -    -    -   
- Imraan Suleman  -    -    -    -   

Sign on bonus  -   13 545 607  -   13 545 607

- Gerald Leissner  -    5 708 965  -    5 708 965 
- Mark Kaplan  -    5 708 965  -    5 708 965 
- Imraan Suleman  -    2 127 677  -    2 127 677 

Total salaries and bonuses  6 770 000  21 045 607  6 770 000  21 045 607

Fees paid to non executive directors

Director remuneration fee  583 000  465 000  583 000  465 000

Elizabeth Stroebel  203 500  185 000  203 500  185 000 
Leonard Brehm - deceased  -    77 084  -    77 084 
Matthew Nell  209 000  190 000  209 000  190 000 
Selwyn Noik  170 500  12 916  170 500  12 916 
Taffy Adler - ceded right to fees  -    -    -    -   

Total fees  583 000  465 000  583 000  465 000

Total remuneration  7 353 000  21 510 607  7 353 000  21 510 607
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17. Changes in fair values

 GROUP 2013 GROUP 2012 COMPANY 2013 COMPANY 2012

R R R R

Unrealised gain on revaluation of 
investment property

 164 589 482  241 868 053  164 589 482  241 868 053 

Straight line rental income accrual on 
investment property

 (20 467 648)  (10 490 787)  (20 467 648)  (10 490 787)

Profit on sale of investment 
properties

 255 460  -    255 460  -   

Derivative instruments  7 678 759  -    7 678 759  -   

 152 056 052  231 377 266  152 056 052  231 377 266 

18. Net finance charges

 GROUP 2013 GROUP 2012 COMPANY 2013 COMPANY 2012

R R R R

Interest paid - secured financial 
liabilities

 52 512 309  49 449 772  52 512 309  49 449 772 

Interest paid - finance lease 
obligation

 -    3 637 478  -    3 637 478 

Interest paid - interest rate swaps  1 601 460  -    1 601 460  -   
Interest paid - other  183 685  204 924  183 685  204 924 
Amortisation of structuring fee (note 
12)

 513 321  454 717  513 321  454 717 

 54 810 774  53 746 891  54 810 774  53 746 891 

Amortisation of debenture premium  (44 391 560)  (21 840 788)  (45 903 174)  (21 840 788)
Interest received - bank  (1 663 548)  (1 520 345)  (1 663 548)  (1 520 345)
Interest received from tenants  (440 138)  -    (440 138)  -   
Antecedent interest received on issue 
of linked units

 (5 928 794)  (23 584 562)  (5 928 794)  (23 584 562)

Interest received - Participants of 
the Arrowhead Unit Purchase Trust

 (4 306 263)  (679 274)  (4 306 263)  (679 274)

Interest received - Arrowhead 
Charitable Trust

 -    -    (5 186 700)  -   

 (56 730 303)  (47 624 969)  (63 428 617)  (47 624 969)

 (1 919 529)  6 121 922  (8 617 843)  6 121 922 
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19. Derivatives

 GROUP 2013 GROUP 2012 COMPANY 2013 COMPANY 2012

R R R R

Long-term cancellable interest rate 
swaps

R189 Million at a fixed quarter Jibar 
3million fixed rate of 6.14%, maturing 
on 31 May 2018

 6 707 679  -    6 707 679  -   

R73 Million at a fixed quarter Jibar 
3million fixed rate of 6.73%, maturing 
on 31 May 2018

 971 080  -    971 080  -   

 7 678 759  -    7 678 759  -   

The derivative instruments were valued 
by the Standard Bank of South Africa 
Limited by discounting the future cash 
flows using the JIBAR swap curve.

20. Taxation

 GROUP 2013 GROUP 2012 COMPANY 2013 COMPANY 2012

R R R R

Deferred  (93 722 164)  58 022 561  (93 722 164)  58 022 561

Reconciliation of taxation charge

Profit before tax at 28%  60 736 273  69 027 212  61 159 525  69 027 212
Taxation effect of:  -    -   - -
Fair value adjustment to investment 
property at 18.67% (2011: 14%)

-  (21 379 259) -  (21 379 259)

Change in CGT rate -  12 137 864 -  12 137 864 
Unprovided timing differences (2 150 052)  1 058 010 (2 150 052)  1 058 010 
Non-taxable income (12 429 638)  (6 115 421) (12 852 890)  (6 115 421)
Permanent differences (2013 includes 
property fair value adjustment)

(46 156 583)  3 294 156 (46 156 583)  3 294 156 

Derecognition of deferred taxation on 
conversion to REIT

(93 722 164) - (93 722 164) -

(93 722 164) 58 022 562 (93 722 164) 58 022 562

No provision for normal taxation 
has been made as the company has an 
estimated loss for tax purposes of 
R11,5 million.
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21. Earnings, headline earnings and distributable earnings

 GROUP 2013 GROUP 2012 COMPANY 2013 COMPANY 2012

R R R R

Number of A and B linked units in 
issue at year end

394 790 958 341 124 332 412 790 958 341 124 332

Weighted average number of linked 
units in issue used for the 
calculation of earnings and headline 
earnings per linked unit

375 409 723 184 634 111 385 913 833 184 634 111

Reconciliation of earnings, headline 
earnings and distributable earnings

Profit for the year attributable to 
equity holders

 310 637 425  188 503 194  312 149 039  188 503 194 

Debenture interest  218 380 831  128 531 615  223 567 531  128 531 615 

Redefine Properties Limited  -    21 220 503  -    21 220 503 
Debenture interest - A Linked units  117 179 529  63 610 142  118 529 529  63 610 142 
Debenture interest - B Linked units  103 748 302  43 700 970  105 038 002  43 700 970 

Earnings  529 018 256  317 034 809  535 716 570  317 034 809 

Change in fair value of properties 
(net of deferred taxation)

 (235 365 674)  (187 970 891)  (235 365 674)  (187 970 891)

Change in fair value of properties  (144 121 834)  (231 377 266)  (144 121 834)  (231 377 266)
Deferred taxation  (91 243 840)  43 406 375  (91 243 840)  43 406 375 
Deferred taxation -CGT rate adjustment -  12 137 864 -  12 137 864 

Headline profit/(loss) loss 
attributable to linked unitholders

 293 652 583  141 201 782 300 350 896  141 201 782 

Straight line rental income accrual 
(net of deferred taxation)

 (23 405 069)  (7 553 367)  (23 405 069)  (7 553 367)

Straight line rental income accrual  (20 467 648)  (10 490 787)  (20 467 648)  (10 490 787)
Deferred taxation (2 937 420)    2 937 420 (2 937 420)    2 937 420 
Deferred taxation -other adjustments  459 096  (459 096)  459 096  (459 096)
Sign on bonus for directors  -    13 545 607  -    13 545 607 
Finance lease interest  -    3 637 478  -    3 637 478 
Other fair value movements (7 934 218) - (7 934 218) -
Amortisation of debenture premuim  (44 391 560)  (21 840 788)  (45 903 174)  (21 840 788)
Distributable earnings attributable 
to linked unitholders

218 380 831  128 531 615  223 567 531  128 531 615

Basic and diluted earnings per A 
linked unit (cents)

 145,17  182,49  142,31  182,49 

Basic and diluted earnings per B 
linked unit (cents)

 138,02  160,93  135,32  160,93 

Headline earnings per A linked unit 
(cents)

 82,48  87,26 81,32 87,26 

Headline earnings per B linked unit 
(cents)

 75,32 65,69  74,33  65,69 
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22. Note to the cash flow statement

22.1 The following convention applies to figures other than adjustments

Outflows of cash are represented by figures in brackets. Inflows of cash are represented by figures 
without brackets.

22.2 Cash generated from operation

 GROUP 2013 GROUP 2012 COMPANY 2013 COMPANY 2012

R R R R

Profit before taxation  216 915 261  246 525 755  218 426 875  246 525 755
Adjusted for 
Non cash items:  (169 109 621)  (231 978 686)  (169 109 621)  (231 978 686)
- Changes in fair values  (152 056 052)  (231 377 266)  (152 056 052)  (231 377 266)
- Straight line rental income accrual  (20 467 648)  (10 490 787)  (20 467 648)  (10 490 787)
- Depreciation  341 862  190 140  341 862  190 140 
- Amortisation of tenant installations 
and lease commissions

 2 558 896  1 117 146  2 558 896  1 117 146 

- Sign on bonus, net of PAYE  -    8 127 364  -    8 127 364 
- Amortisation of structuring fee  513 321 454 717  513 321  454 717
Net finance/(income) charges  (1 919 529)  6 121 922  (8 617 843)  6 121 922 
Debenture interest  218 380 831  128 531 615  223 567 531  128 531 615 
Operating profit before working 
capital changes

 264 266 942  149 200 607  264 266 942  149 200 607 

Working capital changes  5 559 871  29 518 610  5 559 871  29 518 610 
- Trade and other receivables  15 424 967  (5 199 558)  15 424 967  (5 199 558)
- Trade and other payables  (9 865 096)  34 718 168  (9 865 096)  34 718 168 

 269 826 812  178 719 217  269 826 812  178 719 217 

23. Capital commitments

 GROUP 2013 GROUP 2012 COMPANY 2013 COMPANY 2012

R R R R

Acqusition of investment properties 
and improvements to existing 
properties
- approved and committed 118 836 000 161 050 000 118 836 000 161 050 000 
- approved not yet committed 589 320 1 600 000 589 320 1 600 000 

119 425 320 162 650 000 119 425 320 162 650 000 

The acquisitions are to be funded from the proceeds of the capital raising exercise undertaken 
during the year and the issue of linked units.
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24. Minimum lease payments receivable

 GROUP 2013 GROUP 2012 COMPANY 2013 COMPANY 2012

R R R R

Minimum lease payments comprises 
contractual rental income from 
investment properties and operating 
lease recoveries due in terms of 
signed lease agreements

- Receivable within one year  312 020 082  192 247 259  312 020 082  192 247 259 
- Receivable two to five years  550 141 132  334 024 896  550 141 132  334 024 896 
- Receivable beyond five years  82 371 752  19 508 931  82 371 752  19 508 931 

 944 532 966  545 781 086  944 532 966  545 781 086 

25. Related parties and related party transactions

Parties are considered related if one party has the ability to exercise control or significant 
influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.

The Company was wholly owned by Redefine Properties Limited prior to its listing on the 
Johannesburg Stock Exchange.

Related parties with whom the company transacted during the periods under review were:

 GROUP 2013 GROUP 2012 COMPANY 2013 COMPANY 2012

R R R R

Redefine:

Finance lease interest  -    3 637 478  -    3 637 478 
Interest paid to holding company - 
refer to note 18

 -    21 220 503  -    21 220 503 

Acquisition of investment properties / 
right to use assets

 -    87 000 000  -    87 000 000 

Directors emoluments:  7 353 000  21 510 607

Executive directors - refer to note 
16.

 6 770 000  21 045 607 

Non - executive directors - refer to 
note 16.

 583 000  465 000 

Loans to directors - refer to note 6  56 115 679  7 805 522  56 115 679  7 805 522

Loan to Arrowhead Charitable Trust - 
refer to note 7

 134 010 000  -  
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26. Financial risk management

The company’s financial instruments consists mainly of deposits with banks, interest bearing 
liabilities, derivative instruments, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables, 
debentures and linked unitholders for distribution. Book value approximates fair value in respect 
of these financial instruments.

Exposure to market, credit and liquidity risks arises in the normal course of business.

The table below sets out the classification of each class of financial asset and liability and 
their fair values.

There is no difference between group and company except for debentures issued to the Arrowhead 
Charitable Trust amounting to R134 million. Refer to note 11.

FINANCIAL ASSETS

At amortised 
cost

At fair value 
through profit 

or loss

Non Financial 
instrument 

beyond IFRS 7

Total

R R R R

As at 30 September 2013

Financial assets
Trade and other 
receivables

17 667 274 - 836 409 18 503 683

Derivative instrument - 7 678 759 - 7 678 759
Loans to participants 
of the Arrowhead Unit 
Purchase Trust

52 606 994 - - 52 606 994

Cash and cash 
equivalents

25 384 046 - - 25 384 046

Total financial assets 95 658 314 7 678 759 836 409 104 173 482

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities

Debentures 1 890 588 787 - - 1 890 588 787
Secured financial 
liabilities

718 058 570 - - 718 058 570

Trade and other 
payables

46 125 301 - 1 863 056 47 988 358

Unitholders for 
distribution

60 535 754 - - 60 535 754

Total financial 
liabilities

2 715 308 412 - 1 863 056 2 717 171 468
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FINANCIAL ASSETS

At amortised 
cost

At fair value 
through profit 

or loss

Non Financial 
instrument 

beyond IFRS 7

Total

R R R R

As at 30 September 2012

Financial assets
Trade and other 
receivables

25 663 684 - 895 474 26 559 158

Loans to participants 
of the Arrowhead Unit 
Purchase Trust

5 873 012 - - 5 873 012

Cash and cash 
equivalents

190 136 596 - - 190 136 596

Total financial assets 221 673 292 - 895 474 222 568 766

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities

Debentures 1 460 144 838 - - 1 460 144 838
Secured financial 
liabilities

613 192 185 - - 613 192 185

Trade and other 
payables

52 840 075 - 5 013 380 57 853 455

Unitholders for 
distribution

44 382 354 - - 44 382 354

Total financial 
liabilities

2 170 559 452 - 5 013 380 2 175 572 832

Interest rate risk

The company manages its exposure to changes in interest rates by hedging its exposure to interest 
rates in respect of the majority of its borrowings either in the form of fixed rate loans or 
interest rate swaps. At year end, interest rates in respect of 90% (2012 : 63%) of borrowings were 
hedged.

The average rate of interest for the year was 8.17%. The value of unhedged borrowings is R70 
million, and as a result, the company’s unhedged exposure is immaterial at year end.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial commitments as 
and when they fall due. This risk is managed by holding cash balances and a revolving loan facility 
and by regularly monitoring cash flows.

No interest payments on debentures have been included as the amounts involved are dependent on 
future changes in income enhancing property. With effect from 1 October 2013 the group will be 
registered as a “REIT” company that will result in debentures being converted to shares in the 
group.

The company will utilise undrawn facilities and cash on hand to meet its short term funding 
requirements.

A maturity analysis of the company’s financial assets and liabilities and its exposure to interest 
rate risk at year end are set out in the table below:
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 Weighted 
average 

effective 
interest rate 

 Less than one 
year

 One to five 
years

 More than five 
years

 Total

As at 30 September 2013  % R R R R

Financial assets

Trade and other 
receivables

 18 503 683  -    -    18 503 683 

Derivative instrument  Average 6,44 - 7 678 759 - 7 678 759
Loans to directors 8,63  -    52 606 994  -    52 606 994 
Cash and cash 
equivalents

4,5  25 384 046  -    -    25 384 046 

Total financial assets  43 887 729  60 285 753  -    104 173 482

Financial liabilities

Debentures Variable  -    -    1 890 588 787  1 890 588 787 
Secured financial 
liabilities

8,17  -    718 058 570  -    718 058 570 

Interest outflow on 
secured financial 
liabilities

60 469 891 146 875 795 - 207 345 686

Trade and other 
payables

 47 988 358  -    -    47 988 358 

Unitholders for 
distribution

Variable  60 535 754  -    -    60 535 754 

Total financial 
liabilities

 168 994 003  864 934 365  1 890 588 787  2 924 517 155
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 Weighted 
average 

effective 
interest rate 

 Less than one 
year

 One to five 
years

 More than five 
years

 Total

As at 30 September 2012  % R R R R

Financial assets

Trade and other 
receivables

 26 559 158  -    -    26 559 158 

Loans to directors 10  -    5 873 012  -    5 873 012 
Cash and cash 
equivalents

4,5  190 136 596  -    -    190 136 596 

Total financial assets  216 695 754  5 873 012  -    222 568 766 

Financial liabilities

Debentures Variable  -    -    1 460 144 838  1 460 144 838 
Secured financial 
liabilities

8,13  167 836 522  447 750 946  -    615 587 468 

Interest outflow on 
secured financial 
liabilities

52 825 945 122 025 729 - 174 851 674

Trade and other 
payables

 57 853 455  -    -    57 853 455 

Unitholders for 
distribution

Variable  44 382 354  -    -    44 382 354 

Total financial 
liabilities

 322 898 276  569 776 675  1 460 144 838  2 352 819 789

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from the risk that a tenant may default or not meet its obligations timeously. 
The financial position of the tenants is monitored on an ongoing basis. The risk is minimised as 
receivables are spread over a wide customer base. Allowance is made for specific doubtful debts and 
credit risk is therefore limited to the carrying amount of the financial asset at year end.

Receivables past due but not impaired are believed collectable due to the nature of the tenant an 
dpayment history.

Other than mortgage bonds on investment properties no other assets have been issued as collateral 
or security.

The impairment allowance at 30 September 2013 of R2,856 million (2012 : R1,617 million), net of 
tenant deposits and guarantees, relates to tenants who have either vacated the premises or who have 
been handed over for non payment.

The credit quality of receivables neither past due nor impaired are considered satisfactory.

Management does not consider there to be any credit risk exposure that is not already covered in 
the impairment. The carrying value of receivables is considered to reasonably approximate fair 
value.
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27. Capital management

The company’s borrowings, excluding debentures, are limited to 50% of the valuation of the 
investment property portfolio in terms of the existing debt covenants and unlimited in terms of the 
memorandum of incorporation of the company.

 GROUP 2013 GROUP 2012 COMPANY 2013 COMPANY 2012

R R R R

As at 30 September 2013, the unutilised borrowing capacity of the company was as follows:

Investment properties at valuation  3 113 410 116  2 236 161 828  3 113 410 116  2 236 161 828 
50% thereof  1 556 705 058  1 118 080 914  1 556 705 058  1 118 080 914 
Total borrowings  719 598 532  615 245 468  719 598 532  615 245 468 
Unutilised borrowing capacity  837 106 526  502 835 446  837 106 526  502 835 446 

Management is committed to a gearing level of a maximum of 40%.

28. Fair value hierarchy

The different levels have been defined as:

Level 1 - fair value is determined from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical 
asset or 

liabilities

Level 2 - fair value is determined through the use of valuation techniques based on observable 
inputs, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - fair value is determined through the use of valuation techniques using significant inputs

The derivative instruments are valued using a level 2 model.

29. Subsequent events

Subsequent to the year end the Company entered into agreements to purchase four investment 
properties for R 119 million. The purchases will be funded through a cash payments from unutilised 
facilities.

On 30 October 2013, the company issued a circular to unitholders to approve the terms and 
conditions pertaining to the asset management contract in terms of which Indite Asset Management 
will provide asset management services to Arrowhead’s government tenanted properties.
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30. Operating segments

The entity has five reportable segments based on the geographic split of the country which are the 
entity’s strategic business segments. For each strategic business segments, the entity’s executive 
directors review internal management reports on a monthly basis. All segments are located in South 
Africa. There are no single major customers.

The following summary describes the operations in each of the entity’s reportable segments.

Gauteng Kwazulu Natal Eastern Cape Other Total

30 September 2013 R R R R R

Revenue - Property 
income

 255 657 265  65 343 790  39 677 515 62 567 818 423 246 388

Straight-line effect of 
lease

14 395 799  2 106 703 1 080 886 2 884 261 20 467 648

Property expense  (99 584 371)  (20 766 159)  (8 299 150)  (33 743 846)  (162 393 525)

Operating income  170 468 693  46 684 334  32 459 251  31 708 233  281 320 511
Finance income  277 961  92 981  6 104  11 961 696 12 338 743

Amortisation of 
debenture premium

 -  -  -  44 391 560  44 391 560

Finance cost  (7 495)  (4 431)  (153 753)  (54 645 095)  (54 810 774)

Net operating income  170 739 159  46 772 884  32 311 603  33 416 394  283 240 040

Fair value adjustment  93 583 615  21 229 473  7 997 155  29 245 809  152 056 052

Reportable segment 
(loss)/profit before 
debenture interest and 
tax

 264 322 774  68 002 357  40 308 757  62 662 203  435 296 092

Debenture interest  -  -  -  (218 380 831)  (218 380 831)

Taxation  -  -  -  93 722 164  93 722 164

Reportable segment 
(loss)/profit after 
debenture interest and 
tax

 264 322 774  68 002 357  40 308 757  (61 996 464) 310 637 425

Reportable segment 
assets

 2 277 768 966  485 377 793  322 428 588 132 502 358  3 218 077 707

Reportable segment 
liabilities

 (24 152 857)  (6 620 280)  (1 796 838) (2 684 601 633) (2 717 171 608)

2 253 616 109  (478 757 514)  (320 631 750) (2 552 099 275)  (500 906 098)

Arrowhead Integrated Annual Report 2013 113



Gauteng Kwazulu Natal Eastern Cape Other Total

30 September 2012 R R R R R

Revenue - Property 
income

136 801 800  52 561 865 26 991 935 43 103 347 259 458 947

Straight-line effect of 
lease

5 880 234 1 575 001 266 475 2 769 077 10 490 787

Other income 3 086 4 745 9 685 258 578 276 094

Property expense  (51 043 942)  (17 862 384)  (8 524 702)  (42 992 773)  (120 423 801)

Operating income  91 641 178  36 279 228  18 743 393 3 138 229 149 802 027
Finance income 285 173 144 900 20 494 25 333 614 25 784 181

Amortisation of 
debenture premium

 -  -  - 21 840 789 21 840 789

Finance cost  (16 524)  (5 332)  (8 408)  (53 716 627)  (53 746 891)

Net operating income  91 909 826  36 418 795 18 755 479 (3 403 995) 143 680 106

Fair value adjustment 66 189 845 33 741 578 97 582 633 33 863 211 231 377 266

Reportable segment 
(loss)/profit before 
debenture interest and 
tax

158 099 671 70 160 373 116 338 112 30 459 216 375 057 370

Debenture interest  -  -  -  (128 531 615)  (128 531 615)

Taxation  -  -  - (58 022 563) (58 022 563)

Reportable segment 
(loss)/profit after 
debenture interest and 
tax

158 099 671 70 160 373 116 338 112 (156 094 962) 188 503 194

Reportable segment 
assets

1 352 283 571 407 781 489 295 072 863 404 425 878 2 459 563 801

Reportable segment 
liabilities

 (21 369 337)  (9 988 106)  (4 497 467) (2 233 340 120) (2 269 295 130)

1 330 914 345 397 793 383  290 475 297 (1 828 914 242)  190 268 672
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Annual general meeting 15 January 2014

Dividend timetable for the 2014 financial year

DIVIDEND Number 9 10 11 12

Three months ended 31-12-2013 31-03-2014 30-06-2014 30-09-2014

Declaration date 12-02-2014 14-05-2014 13-08-2014 12-11-2014

Units trade ex distribution 03-03-2014 02-06-2014 01-09-2014 01-12-2014

Payment date 10-03-2014 09-06-2014 08-09-2014 08-12-2014

    

        
    
  

Unitholders’ Diary
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ARROWHEAD PROPERTIES LIMITED 
(FORMERLY NERVADA TRADING 13 PROPRIETARY LIMITED) 
(INCORPORATED IN THE REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA) 
(REGISTRATION NUMBER 2011/000308/06) 
JSE CODE: AWA ISIN: ZAE000158101  
JSE CODE: AWB ISIN: ZAE000158119 
(APPROVED AS A REIT BY THE JSE) 
(“ARROWHEAD” OR “THE COMPANY”)

Notice of annual general meeting of 
shareholders and debenture holders

Notice is hereby given that the annual 
general meeting of shareholders of Arrowhead 
(“shareholders”) and the holders of Arrowhead “A” 
and “B” debentures (“debenture holders”) will be 
held at the offices of Arrowhead, 2nd Floor, 18 
Melrose Boulevard, Melrose Arch, Johannesburg on 
Wednesday, 15 January 2014 at 10:00 (the “annual 
general meeting”) for the purposes of:

A. Presenting the directors’ report, the audited 
annual financial statements, the audit 
committee report and the social and ethics 
committee report of the company for the year 
ended 30 September 2013 contained in the 
integrated annual report to which this notice 
of annual general meeting is attached;

B. transacting any other business as may be 
transacted at an annual general meeting of 
shareholders of a company including the re-
appointment of the auditors and re-election of 
retiring directors; and

C. considering and, if deemed fit, adopting with or 
without modification, the shareholder ordinary 
and special resolutions set out below.

In terms of section 59(1)(a) and (b) of the 
Companies Act, 71 of 2008, as amended (the 
“Companies Act” or “Act”), the Board has set the 
record date for the purpose of determining which 
shareholders are entitled to:

i. receive notice of the annual general meeting 
(being the date on which the shareholder must 
be registered in the share register in order to 
receive notice of the annual general meeting); and 
 

ii. participate in and vote at the annual general 
meeting (being the date on which the shareholder 
must be registered in the company’s share 
register in order to participate in and vote 
at the annual general meeting), as follows:

Event Date

2013

Record date for receipt of notice 
purposes

Friday, 8 November

Integrated annual report posted on Wednesday, 13 November

Last day to trade in order to be 
eligible to participate in and vote at 
the annual general meeting

Tuesday, 24 December

2014

Record date for voting purposes 
(“voting record date”)

Friday, 3 January

Last day to lodge forms of proxy for 
the annual general meeting (at 10:00)

Monday, 13 January

Annual general meeting (at 10:00) Wednesday, 15 January

Results of annual general meeting 
released on SENS

Wednesday, 15 January

Due to the expanded meaning of “shareholder” in 
section 57(1) of the Companies Act the company has 
expanded its notice to shareholders and debenture 
holders for a “combined” annual general meeting.

Due to Arrowhead’s linked unit structure, its 
shareholders are also its debenture holders and 
the matters to be voted on at the annual general 
meeting are matters on which shareholders, and 
not debenture holders, are entitled to vote. As a 
result, a proxy form has only been included for 
shareholders.

For clarity, as each Arrowhead “A” linked unit 
comprises one ordinary share of no par value 

Notice of AGM
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indivisibly linked to one “A” debenture issued 
in terms of the Arrowhead Debenture Trust Deed 
and each Arrowhead “B” linked unit comprises 
one ordinary share of no par value indivisibly 
linked to one “B” debenture issued in terms of 
the Arrowhead Debenture Trust Deed, the holder of 
either an Arrowhead “A” linked unit or an Arrowhead 
“B” linked unit is a shareholder of the company 
entitled to exercise voting rights at the annual 
general meeting of the company in accordance with 
the company’s Memorandum of Incorporation. In 
terms of section 62(3)(e) of the Companies Act:

 ■ a shareholder who is entitled to attend and 
vote at the annual general meeting is entitled 
to appoint a proxy or two or more proxies 
to attend, participate in and vote at the 
annual general meeting in the place of the 
shareholder;

 ■ a debenture holder who is entitled to attend 
the annual general meeting is entitled to 
appoint a proxy or two or more proxies to 
attend and participate (but not vote) in the 
annual general meeting in the place of the 
debenture holder;

 ■ a proxy need not be a shareholder of the 
company.

Kindly note that in terms of section 63(1) of 
the Companies Act, meeting participants (including 
proxies) are required to provide reasonably 
satisfactory identification before being entitled 
to attend or participate in the annual general 
meeting. In this regard, all Arrowhead shareholders 
and debenture holders recorded in the registers of 
the company on the voting record will be required 
to provide identification satisfactory to the 
chairman of the annual general meeting.

Forms of identification include valid identity 
documents, driver’s licences and passports.

Ordinary resolution 1:  
Re-election of T Adler as director
“Resolved that T Adler who retires in terms of 
the company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and who, 
being eligible, offers himself for re-election, be 
re-elected as a director of the company.”

A brief curriculum vitae in respect of T Adler is 
set out on page 22 of the integrated annual report 
of which this notice forms part.

In order for ordinary resolution 1 to be adopted, 
the support of more than 50% of the total number 
of votes exercisable by shareholders, present 
in person or by proxy, is required to pass this 
resolution.

Ordinary resolution 2:  
Re-election of M Nell as director
“Resolved that M Nell who retires in terms of 
the company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and who, 
being eligible, offers himself for re-election, be 
re-elected as a director of the company.”

A brief curriculum vitae in respect of M Nell is 
set out on page 22 of the integrated annual report 
of which this notice forms part.

In order for ordinary resolution 2 to be adopted, 
the support of more than 50% of the total number 
of votes exercisable by shareholders, present 
in person or by proxy, is required to pass this 
resolution.

Ordinary resolution 3:  
Re-appointment of members of the 
audit and risk committee
“Resolved that the members of the company’s audit 
and risk committee set out below be and are hereby 
re-appointed, each by way of a seperate vote, with 
effect from the end of this annual general meeting 
in terms of section 94(2) of the Companies Act. 
The membership as proposed by the remuneration and 
nominations committee is

3.1 S Noik (Chairman);

3.2 E Stroebel; and

3.3 subject to ordinary resolution 2 being passed 
by the requisite majority, M Nell,

all of whom are independent non-executive 
directors.”

A brief curriculum vitae of each of the above 
audit and risk committee members is set out on 
page 22 of the integrated annual report of which 
this notice forms part.

In order for ordinary resolutions 3.1 - 3.3 to 
be adopted, the support of more than 50% of the 
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total number of votes exercisable by shareholders, 
present in person or by proxy, is required to pass 
each of these resolutions.

Ordinary resolution 4:  
Appointment of auditors
“Resolved that Grant Thornton (Jhb) Inc which 
merged with PKF (Jhb) Inc (appointed as the 
company’s auditors at the previous annual general 
meeting) together with Paul Badrick, be and are 
hereby appointed as the auditors of the company 
from the conclusion of this annual general meeting 
until the conclusion of the next annual general 
meeting.”

The audit and risk committee has nominated for 
appointment as auditors of the company under 
section 90 of the Companies Act, Grant Thornton. 

In order for ordinary resolution 4 to be adopted, 
the support of more than 50% of the total number 
of votes exercisable by shareholders, present 
in person or by proxy, is required to pass this 
resolution.

Ordinary resolution 5: 
Unissued Arrowhead linked units 
placed under the control of the 
directors for acquisition issues and/or 
vendor consideration placings in respect 
of the period commencing from the 
date of this notice of annual general 
meeting and expiring on 8 January 
2014 (being 5 business days before the 
date of the annual general meeting)
“Resolved that the authorised and unissued 
ordinary shares of the company be and are hereby 
placed under the control of the directors of the 
company, which directors are, subject to the JSE 
Listings Requirements and the provisions of the 
Companies Act, authorised to allot and issue up 
to 60 million ordinary shares each of which is 
indivisibly linked to an “A” debenture as a “A” 

linked unit and up to 60 million ordinary shares 
each of which is indivisibly linked to a “B” 
debenture as a “B” linked unit at such time or 
times, to such persons, and upon the terms and 
conditions of:

a. an acquisition issue, as defined in the JSE 
Listings Requirements; and/or

b. a vendor consideration placing, as defined in 
the JSE Listings Requirements, in compliance 
with paragraph 5.62 of the JSE Listings 
Requirements,

as they deem fit, provided that the relevant 
acquisition/s has/have been announced by the 
company at any time between the date of this 
notice of annual general meeting and 8 January 
2014 (being 5 business days before the date of the 
annual general meeting).”

In order for ordinary resolution 5 to be adopted, 
the support of more than 50% of the total number 
of votes exercisable by shareholders, present 
in person or by proxy, is required to pass this 
resolution.

Ordinary resolution 6: 
Unissued Arrowhead linked units 
placed under the control of the 
directors for acquisition issues and/
or vendor consideration placings with 
effect from the date of the annual 
general meeting 
“Resolved that, with effect from the date of the 
annual general meeting, the authorised and unissued 
ordinary shares of the company be and are hereby 
placed under the control of the directors of the 
company, which directors are, subject to the JSE 
Listings Requirements and the provisions of the 
Companies Act, authorised to allot and issue up 
to 20,6 million ordinary shares, each of which is 
indivisibly linked to an a “A” debenture as an 
“A” linked unit and up to 20,6 million ordinary 
shares each of which is indivisibly linked to a 
“B” debenture as a “B” linked unit to such persons 
and upon the terms and conditions of:

a. an acquisition issue, as defined in the JSE 
Listings Requirements; and/or
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b. a vendor consideration placing, as defined in 
the JSE Listings Requirements, in compliance 
with paragraph 5.62 of the JSE Listings 
Requirements,

as they deem fit, it being recorded for the 
avoidance of any doubt that this authorisation 
placing the authorised and unissued Arrowhead 
linked units under the directors’ control for the 
purpose of allotting and issuing Arrowhead “A” 
linked units and/or Arrowhead “B” linked units to 
any persons under the terms and conditions of this 
general authority is with effect from the date of 
the annual general meeting and is in respect of 
those acquisitions announced after the date of the 
annual general meeting.” 

In order for ordinary resolution 6 to be adopted, 
the support of more than 50% of the total number 
of votes exercisable by shareholders, present 
in person or by proxy, is required to pass this 
resolution.

Ordinary resolution 7: 
General authority to issue linked units 
for cash
“Resolved that, subject to the restrictions 
set out below, the directors be and are hereby 
authorised pursuant to, inter alia, the company’s 
Memorandum of Incorporation and subject to the 
provisions of the Companies Act and the JSE 
Listings Requirements, until this authority lapses 
at the next annual general meeting of the company, 
provided that this authority shall not extend 
beyond 15 months, to allot and issue ordinary 
shares, indivisibly linked to either an “A” 
debenture as an “A” linked unit or a “B” debenture 
as a “B” linked unit, of the company for cash on 
the following basis:

a. the allotment and issue of ordinary shares 
indivisibly linked to either an “A” debenture 
as an “A” linked unit or a “B” debenture as 
a “B” linked unit must be made to persons 
qualifying as public shareholders and not to 
related parties, as defined in the JSE Listings 
Requirements;

b. the ordinary shares, indivisibly linked to 
either an “A” debenture as part of an “A” 
linked unit or a “B” debenture as part of a “B” 
linked unit which are the subject of the issue 
for cash, must be of a class already in issue 
or, where this is not the case, must be limited 

to such shares or rights that are convertible 
into a class already in issue;

c. the number of ordinary shares which may be 
issued for cash shall not exceed 10,3 million 
ordinary shares each of which is indivisibly 
linked to an “A” debenture comprising, in 
aggregate, 10,3 million “A” linked units and 
10,3 million ordinary shares each of which 
is indivisibly linked to a “B” debenture 
comprising, in aggregate, 10,3 million “B” 
linked units, being 5% of the company’s 
aggregate issued ordinary share capital as 
at the date of this notice of annual general 
meeting provided that:

i. any “A” linked units and/or “B” linked 
units issued under this authority prior to 
this authority lapsing shall be deducted 
from 10,3 million “A” linked units and/or 
10,3 million “B” linked units, as the case 
may be, which the company is authorised 
to issue in terms of this authority;

ii. in the event of a sub-division or 
consolidation of the Arrowhead “A” linked 
units and/or the Arrowhead “B” linked 
units prior to this authority lapsing, 
the existing authority shall be adjusted 
accordingly to represent the same 
allocation ratio;

d. the maximum discount at which the ordinary 
shares indivisibly linked to an “A” debenture 
as an “A” linked unit or ordinary shares 
indivisibly linked to a “B” debenture as a 
“B” linked unit, may be issued is 10% of the 
weighted average traded price of such “A” 
linked unit or “B” linked unit, as the case may 
be, measured over the 30 business days prior to 
the date that the price of the issue is agreed 
between the company and the party subscribing 
for the linked units concerned; and

e. after the company has issued ordinary shares, 
indivisibly linked to “A” debentures as 
Arrowhead “A” linked units, and ordinary 
shares, indivisibly linked to “B” debentures 
as Arrowhead “B” linked units, which represent, 
on a cumulative basis, prior to the authority 
lapsing, 5% or more of the number of ordinary 
shares in issue prior to that issue, the company 
shall publish an announcement containing full 
details of the issue, including the number of 
linked units issued, the average discount to 
the weighted average traded price of the linked 
units over the 30 days prior to the date that 
the issue is agreed in writing and the effect 
of the issue on net asset value per linked 
unit, net tangible asset value per linked unit, 
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earnings per linked unit, headline earnings 
per linked unit, and, if applicable, diluted 
earnings per linked unit and diluted headline 
earnings per linked unit.”

In order for ordinary resolution 7 to be adopted, 
the support of more than 50% of the total number 
of votes exercisable by shareholders, present 
in person or by proxy, is required to pass this 
resolution.

Ordinary resolution 8:  
Signature of documentation
“Resolved that any director of the company or 
the company secretary be and is hereby authorised 
to sign all such documentation and do all such 
things as may be necessary for or incidental to 
the implementation of the ordinary and special 
resolutions passed at this annual general meeting 
subject to the terms thereof.”

In order for ordinary resolution 8 to be adopted, 
the support of more than 50% of the total number 
of votes exercisable by shareholders, present 
in person or by proxy, is required to pass this 
resolution.

Special resolution 1:  
Linked unit repurchases
“Resolved that the company or any of its 
subsidiaries be and are hereby authorised by way of 
a general approval to acquire ordinary shares and 
debentures issued as linked units by the company, 
in terms of sections 46 and 48 of the Companies 
Act, 71 of 2008 as amended (the “Companies Act”) 
and in terms of the Listings Requirements (the 
“Listings Requirements”) of the JSE Limited (the 
“JSE”) being that:

a. any acquisition of linked units shall be 
implemented through the order book of the JSE 
and without prior arrangement;

b. this general authority shall be valid until 
the company’s next annual general meeting, 
provided that it shall not extend beyond 15 
months from the date of passing this special 
resolution;

c. the company (or any subsidiary) is duly 
authorised by its Memorandum of Incorporation 
(“MOI”) to do so; 

d. acquisitions of linked units in the aggregate 
in any one financial year may not exceed 20% 
(or 10% where the acquisitions are effected by 
a subsidiary) of the company’s issued ordinary 
share capital as at the date of passing this 
special resolution; 

e. in determining the price at which linked units 
issued by the company are acquired by it or any 
of its subsidiaries in terms of this general 
authority, the maximum premium at which such 
linked units may be acquired will be 10% of the 
weighted average of the market value on the 
JSE over the five business days immediately 
preceding the repurchase of such linked units; 

f. at any point in time the company (or any 
subsidiary) may appoint only one agent to 
effect repurchases on its behalf;

g. repurchases may not take place during a 
prohibited period (as defined in paragraph 
3.67 of the Listings Requirements) unless 
a repurchase program is in place (where the 
dates and quantities of linked units to be 
repurchased during the prohibited period are 
fixed) and full details thereof announced on 
SENS prior to commencement of the prohibited 
period; 

h. an announcement will be published as soon 
as the company or any of its subsidiaries 
have acquired linked units constituting on a 
cumulative basis, 3% of the number of linked 
units in issue prior to the acquisition 
pursuant to which the aforesaid threshold is 
reached and for each 3% in aggregate acquired 
thereafter, containing full details of such 
acquisitions; and

i. the board of directors of the company must 
resolve that the repurchase is authorised, the 
company and its subsidiaries have passed the 
solvency and liquidity test, as set out in 
section 4 of the Companies Act, and since that 
test was performed, there have been no material 
changes to the financial position of the group.

j. the company’s sponsor will confirm the 
adequacy of the company’s working capital for 
the purpose of undertaking the repurchase in 
writing prior to the repurchase of any linked 
units.”

In accordance with the Listings Requirements 
the directors record that although there is no 
immediate intention to effect a repurchase of 
the linked units of the company, the directors 
will utilise this general authority to repurchase 
linked units as and when suitable opportunities 
present themselves, which may require expeditious 
and immediate action.
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The directors undertake that, after considering 
the maximum number of linked units that may be 
repurchased and the price at which the repurchases 
may take place pursuant to the linked unit 
repurchase general authority, for a period of 12 
months after the date of notice of this annual 
general meeting:

 ■ the company and the group will, in the ordinary 
course of business, be able to pay its debts; 

 ■ the consolidated assets of the company and 
the group fairly valued in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards, 
will exceed the consolidated liabilities 
of the company and the group fairly valued 
in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards; and 

 ■ the company’s and the group’s share capital, 
reserves and working capital will be adequate 
for ordinary business purposes.

The following additional information, some of 
which may appear elsewhere in the integrated 
annual report of which this notice forms part, 
is provided in terms of paragraph 11.26 of the 
Listings Requirements for purposes of this general 
authority:

 ■ Directors and management – pages 22 to 23; 

 ■ Major beneficial unit holders – pages 16 to 19;

 ■ Directors’ interests in linked units – page 75 
to 76; and

 ■ Capital structure of the company – pages 97 to 
98 (notes 10 & 11).

Litigation statement

In terms of section 11.26 of the Listings 
Requirements, the directors, whose names appear 
on pages 22 to 23 of the integrated annual report 
of which this notice forms part, are not aware 
of any legal or arbitration proceedings including 
proceedings that are pending or threatened, that 
may have or have had in the recent past (being at 
least the previous 12 months) a material effect on 
Arrowhead’s financial position.

Directors’ responsibility statement

The directors whose names appear on pages 22 to 
23 of the integrated annual report of which this 
notice forms part, collectively and individually 
accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the 
information pertaining to this special resolution 
and certify that, to the best of their knowledge 
and belief, there are no facts that have been 
omitted which would make any statement false or 
misleading, and that all reasonable enquiries 
to ascertain such facts have been made and that 
the special resolution contains all information 
required by the Companies Act and the Listings 
Requirements.

Material changes

Other than the facts and developments reported 
on in the integrated annual report of which this 
notice forms part, there have been no material 
changes in the affairs or financial position of 
the company and its subsidiaries since the date 
of signature of the audit report for the financial 
year ended 30 September 2013 and up to the date 
of this notice.

In order for special resolution 1 to be adopted, 
the support of at least 75% of the total number 
of votes exercisable by shareholders, present 
in person or by proxy, is required to pass this 
resolution. 

Reason for and effect of special resolution 1

The reason for special resolution 1 is to afford 
the directors of the company (or a subsidiary 
of the company) general authority to effect a 
repurchase of the company’s linked units on the 
JSE.

The effect of the resolution will be that the 
directors will have the authority, subject to the 
Listings Requirements and the Companies Act, to 
effect acquisitions of the company’s linked units 
on the JSE.
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Special resolution 2:  
Financial assistance to related and 
inter-related parties
“Resolved that to the extent required by the 
Companies Act, 71 of 2008 (as amended) (“Companies 
Act”) the board of directors of the company may, 
subject to compliance with the requirements of 
the company’s Memorandum of Incorporation, the 
Companies Act and the Listings Requirements, each 
as presently constituted and as amended from time 
to time, authorise the company to provide direct 
or indirect financial assistance, as contemplated 
in section 45 of the Companies Act by way of loans, 
guarantees, the provision of security or otherwise, 
to any of its present or future subsidiaries and/
or any other company or corporation that is or 
becomes related or inter-related (as defined in 
the Companies Act) to the company for any purpose 
or in connection with any matter, such authority 
to endure until the next annual general meeting 
provided that such authority shall not extend 
beyond two years, and further provided that 
inasmuch as the company’s provision of financial 
assistance to its subsidiaries will at any and 
all times be in excess of one tenth of 1% of the 
company’s net worth, the company hereby provides 
notice to its shareholders of that fact.” 

In order for special resolution 2 to be adopted, 
the support of at least 75% of the total number 
of votes exercisable by shareholders, present 
in person or by proxy, is required to pass this 
resolution.

Reasons for and effect of special 
resolution 2

The company would like the ability to provide 
financial assistance, in appropriate circumstances 
and if the need arises, in accordance with section 
45 of the Companies Act. This authority is 
necessary for the company to provide financial 
assistance in appropriate circumstances. Under the 
Companies Act, the company will, however, require 
the special resolution referred to above to be 
adopted, provided that the board of directors of 
the company are satisfied that the terms under 
which the financial assistance is proposed to 
be given are fair and reasonable to the company 
and, immediately after providing the financial 
assistance, the company would satisfy the solvency 

and liquidity test contemplated in the Companies 
Act.

In the circumstances and in order to, inter 
alia, ensure that the company’s subsidiaries 
and other related and inter-related companies 
and corporations have access to financing and/or 
financial backing from the company (as opposed to 
banks), it is necessary to obtain the approval of 
shareholders, as set out in special resolution 2. 
Therefore, the reason for, and effect of, special 
resolution 2 is to permit the company to provide 
direct or indirect financial assistance (within 
the meaning attributed to that term in section 45 
of the Companies Act) to the entities referred to 
in special resolution 2 above.

Notice in terms of section 45(5) of the 
Companies Act in respect of special 
resolution 2 

Notice is hereby given to shareholders of the 
company in terms of section 45(5) of the Companies 
Act of a resolution adopted by the board authorising 
the company to provide such direct or indirect 
financial assistance as specified in the special 
resolution above –

a. by the time that this notice of annual 
general meeting is delivered to shareholders 
of the company, the board will have adopted 
a resolution (“section 45 board resolution”) 
authorising the company to provide, at any time 
and from time to time during the period of 2 
(two) years commencing on the date on which the 
special resolution is adopted, any direct or 
indirect financial assistance as contemplated 
in section 45 of the Companies Act to any 1 (one) 
or more related or inter-related companies or 
corporations of the company and/or to any 1 
(one) or more members of any such related or 
inter-related company or corporation and/or to 
any 1 (one) or more persons related to any such 
company or corporation;

b. the section 45 board resolution will be 
effective only if and to the extent that 
the special resolution under the heading 
“special resolution number 2” is adopted 
by the shareholders of the company, and the 
provision of any such direct or indirect 
financial assistance by the company, pursuant 
to such resolution, will always be subject to 
the board being satisfied that (i) immediately 
after providing such financial assistance, the 

Arrowhead Integrated Annual Report 2013 123



company will satisfy the solvency and liquidity 
test as referred to in section 45(3)(b)(i) of 
the Companies Act, and that (ii) the terms 
under which such financial assistance is to be 
given are fair and reasonable to the company 
as referred to in section 45(3)(b)(ii) of the 
Companies Act; and

c. in as much as the section 45 board resolution 
contemplates that such financial assistance 
will in the aggregate exceed one–tenth of one 
percent of the company’s net worth at the date 
of adoption of such resolution, the company 
hereby provides notice of the section 45 board 
resolution to shareholders of the company.

Quorum
A quorum for the purposes of considering the 
resolutions above shall consist of three 
shareholders of the company personally present 
(and if the shareholder is a body corporate, it 
must be represented) and entitled to vote at the 
annual general meeting. In addition, a quorum shall 
comprise 25% of all the voting rights that are 
entitled to be exercised by Arrowhead shareholders 
in respect of each matter to be decided at the 
annual general meeting.

The date on which Arrowhead shareholders must be 
recorded as such in the register maintained by 
the transfer secretaries, Computershare Investor 
Services Proprietary Limited, 70 Marshall Street, 
Johannesburg 2001 (PO Box 61051, Marshalltown 
2107), for the purposes of being entitled to 
attend, participate in and vote at the annual 
general meeting is Friday, 3 January 2014.

The date on which Arrowhead debenture holders must 
be recorded as such in the register maintained by 
the transfer secretaries, Computershare Investor 
Services Proprietary Limited, 70 Marshall Street, 
Johannesburg 2001 (PO Box 61051, Marshalltown 
2107), for the purposes of being entitled to attend 
and participate in the annual general meeting is 
Friday, 3 January 2014.

Shareholders

General Instructions

Shareholders are encouraged to attend, speak and 
vote at the annual general meeting.

Electronic Participation

The company has made provision for Arrowhead 
shareholders or their proxies to participate 
electronically in the annual general meeting by 
way of telephone conferencing. Should you wish 
to participate in the annual general meeting by 
telephone conferencing as aforesaid, you, or your 
proxy, will be required to advise the company 
thereof by no later than 10:00 on Monday, 13 
January 2014, by submitting by e-mail to the 
company secretary at pbs@probitysecretaries.
co.za or by fax to be faxed to +2711 327 7149, 
for the attention of Neville Toerien, relevant 
contact details, including an e-mail address, 
cellular number and landline as well as full 
details of the Arrowhead shareholder’s title 
to securities issued by the company and proof 
of identity, in the form of copies of identity 
documents and share certificates (in the case 
of materialised Arrowhead shares) and (in the 
case of dematerialised Arrowhead shares) written 
confirmation from the Arrowhead shareholder’s 
CSDP confirming the Arrowhead shareholder’s 
title to the dematerialised Arrowhead shares. 
Upon receipt of the required information, the 
Arrowhead shareholder concerned will be provided 
with a secure code and instructions to access the 
electronic communication during the annual general 
meeting. Arrowhead shareholders must note that 
access to the electronic communication will be at 
the expense of the Arrowhead shareholders who wish 
to utilise the facility.

Arrowhead shareholders and their appointed proxies 
attending by conference call will not be able to 
cast their votes at the annual general meeting 
through this medium.

Proxies and authority for representatives 
to act

A form of proxy is attached for the convenience 
of any Arrowhead shareholder holding certificated 
shares, who cannot attend the annual general 
meeting but wishes to be represented thereat.

The attached form of proxy is only to be completed 
by those shareholders who are:

 ■ holding shares in certificated form; or

 ■ recorded on the company’s sub-register in 
dematerialised electronic form with “own name” 
registration.
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All other beneficial owners who have dematerialised 
their shares through a Central Securities 
Depository Participant (“CSDP”) or broker and 
wish to attend the annual general meeting, must 
instruct their CSDP or broker to provide them with 
the necessary letter of representation, or they 
must provide the CSDP or broker with their voting 
instructions in terms of the relevant custody 
agreement entered into between them and the CSDP 
or broker. These shareholders must not use a form 
of proxy.

Forms of proxy must be deposited at the Transfer 
Secretaries, Computershare Investor Services 
Proprietary Limited at 70 Marshall Street, 
Johannesburg or by fax on +27 11 688 5238 to be 
received no later than 10:00 on Monday, 13 January 
2014. Any shareholder who completes and lodges a 
form of proxy will nevertheless be entitled to 
attend, speak and vote in person at the annual 
general meeting should the shareholder decide to 
do so.

A company that is a shareholder, wishing to attend 
and participate at the annual general meeting 
should ensure that a resolution authorising a 
representative to so attend and participate 
at the annual general meeting on its behalf is 
passed by its directors. Resolutions authorising 
representatives in terms of section 57(5) of the 
Companies Act must be lodged with the company’s 
transfer secretaries prior to the annual general 
meeting.

Arrowhead does not accept responsibility and will 
not be held liable for any failure on the part of 
the CSDP or broker of a dematerialised shareholder 
to notify such shareholder of the annual general 
meeting or any business to be conducted thereat.

“A” and “B” debenture holders

General Instructions

Debenture holders are encouraged to attend and 
speak at the annual general meeting.

Electronic Participation

The company has made provision for its debenture 
holders or their proxies to participate 
electronically in the annual general meeting by 
way of telephone conferencing. Should you wish 

to participate in the annual general meeting by 
telephone conference call as aforesaid, you, or 
your proxy, will be required to advise the company 
thereof by no later than 10:00 on Monday, 13 
January 2014 by submitting by e-mail to the company 
secretary at pbs@probitysecretaries.co.za or by fax 
to be faxed to +27 11 327 7149, for the attention 
of Neville Toerien, relevant contact details, 
including an e-mail address, cellular number and 
landline as well as full details of the debenture 
holder’s title to securities issued by the company 
and proof of identity, in the form of copies of 
identity documents and debenture certificates 
(in the case of materialised debentures) and (in 
the case of dematerialised debentures) written 
confirmation from the debenture holder’s CSDP 
confirming the debenture holder’s title to the 
dematerialised debentures.

Upon receipt of the required information, the 
debenture holder concerned will be provided with 
a secure code and instructions to access the 
electronic communication during the annual general 
meeting. Debenture holders must note that access 
to the electronic communication will be at the 
expense of the debenture holder who wishes to 
utilise the facility.

Proxies and authority for representatives 
to act

Due to Arrowhead’s linked unit structure, its 
shareholders are also its debenture holders and 
the matters to be voted on at the annual general 
meeting are matters on which shareholders and 
not debenture holders are entitled to vote. As a 
result, a proxy form has only been included for 
shareholders.

Debenture holders wishing to appoint a proxy or 
two or more proxies to attend and participate 
(but not vote) in the annual general meeting, 
may contact the company secretary by e-mail                   
pbs@probitysecretaries.co.za or by fax on                 
+27 11 327 7149, to obtain such form of proxy.

Arrowhead does not accept responsibility and will 
not be held liable for any failure on the part of 
the CSDP or broker of a dematerialised debenture 
holder to notify such debenture holder of the 
annual general meeting or any business to be 
conducted thereat.

By order of the board. 
ARROWHEAD PROPERTIES LIMITED 
13 November 2013
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The a�ached p���y fo�m mut be depoited at the 
T�anfe� Sec�eta�ie, C�mpute�ha�e In�eto� Se��ice (Pty) Ltd 
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ARROWHEAD PROPERTIES LIMITED 
(FORMERLY NERVADA TRADING 13 PROPRIETARY LIMITED) 
(INCORPORATED IN THE REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA) 
(REGISTRATION NUMBER 2011/000308/06) 
JSE CODE: AWA ISIN: ZAE000158101 
JSE CODE: AWB ISIN: ZAE000158119 
(APPROVED AS A REIT BY THE JSE)  
(“ARROWHEAD” OR “THE COMPANY”)

This form of proxy is only for use by:

 ■ registered shareholders who have not yet dematerialised their Arrowhead linked units;

 ■ registered shareholders who have already dematerialised their Arrowhead linked units and which linked units are registered in their 
own names in the company’s sub-register, at the close of business on Friday, 3 January 2014 (the “voting record date”).

For completion by the aforesaid registered shareholders of Arrowhead who are unable to attend the annual general meeting of the company 
to be held at the offices of the company at 2nd Floor, 18 Melrose Boulevard, Melrose Arch, Johannesburg, at 10:00 on Wednesday, 15 
January 2014 (the “annual general meeting”).

If you are a dematerialised shareholder, other than with “own name” registration, do not use this form.  Dematerialised shareholders, 
other than with “own name” registration, should provide instructions to their appointed Central Securities Depository Participant 
(“CSDP”) or broker in the form as stipulated in the agreement entered into between the shareholder and the CSDP or broker.

I/WE      OF (ADDRESS)

BEING THE HOLDER/S OF     ARROWHEAD SHARES HEREBY APPOINT:  

1.      OR FAILING HIM/HER,

2.      OR FAILING HIM/HER,

3.THE CHAIRMAN OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING, 

as my/our proxy to attend and speak and to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the annual general meeting and at any adjournment or 
postponement thereof, for the purpose of considering and, if deemed fit, passing, with or without modification, the resolutions to be 
proposed at the annual general meeting, and to vote on the resolutions in respect of the ordinary shares registered in my/our name(s).

Please indicate with an “X” in the appropriate spaces below how you wish your votes to be cast. Unless this is done the proxy will 
vote as he/she thinks fit.

IN FAVOUR OF AGAINST ABSTAIN

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 1: Re-election of T Adler as director 

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 2: Re-election of M Nell as director

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 3: Re-appointment of members of the audit and risk committee 

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 3.1 S. Noik

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 3.2 E. Stroebel

ORDINARY RESOULTION 3.3 M. Nell

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 4: Appointment of auditors

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 5: Unissued linked units under control for acquisition issues/vendor       
                       placings before 8 January 2014

ORDINARY RESOLUTION 6: Unissued linked units under control for acquisition issues/vendor  
                       placings from the annual general meeting
ORDINARY RESOLUTION 7: General authority to issue linked units for cash
ORDINARY RESOLUTION 8: Signature of documentation
SPECIAL RESOLUTION 1: Linked unit repurchases 
SPECIAL RESOLUTION 2: Financial assistance to related and inter-related parties

* ONE VOTE PER SHARE HELD BY ARROWHEAD SHAREHOLDERS RECORDED IN THE REGISTER ON THE VOTING RECORD DATE BEING FRIDAY, 3 JANUARY 2014

Unless otherwise instructed, my/our proxy may vote or abstain from voting as he/she thinks fit.

SIGNED THIS      DAY OF     20

SIGNATURE       ASSISTED BY ME (WHERE APPLICABLE)

(STATE CAPACITY AND FULL NAME)

 
A SHAREHOLDER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND, VOTE AND SPEAK IN HIS/
HER STEAD. A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. EACH SHAREHOLDER IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND, SPEAK 
AND, ON A POLL, VOTE IN PLACE OF THAT SHAREHOLDER AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING. FORMS OF PROXY MUST BE DEPOSITED AT COMPUTERSHARE 
INVESTOR SERVICES PROPRIETARY LIMITED, GROUND FLOOR, 70 MARSHALL STREET, JOHANNESBURG, OR POSTED TO PO BOX 61051, MARSHALLTOWN, 2107 
SO AS TO ARRIVE BY NO LATER THAN 10:00 ON MONDAY, 13 JANUARY 2014. PLEASE READ THE NOTES ON THE REVERSE SIDE HEREOF.

Form of proxy for 
Arrowhead Shareholders



1. Only shareholders who are registered in the register of the company 
under their own name on the date on which shareholders must be recorded 
as such in the register maintained by the transfer secretaries, 
Computershare Investor Services Proprietary Limited, being Friday,  
3 January 2014 (the “voting record date”), may complete a form of 
proxy or attend the annual general meeting. This includes shareholders 
who have not dematerialised their shares or who have dematerialised 
their shares with “own name” registration. The person whose name 
stands first on the form of proxy and who is present at the annual 
general meeting will be entitled to act as proxy to the exclusion of 
those whose names follow. A proxy need not be a shareholder of the 
company.

2. Certificated shareholders wishing to attend the annual general meeting 
have to ensure beforehand with the transfer secretaries of the company 
(being Computershare Investor Services Proprietary Limited) that 
their shares are registered in their own name.

3. Beneficial shareholders whose shares are not registered in their 
“own name”, but in the name of another, for example, a nominee, may 
not complete a proxy form, unless a form of proxy is issued to them 
by a registered shareholder and they should contact the registered 
shareholder for assistance in issuing instructions on voting their 
shares, or obtaining a proxy to attend, speak and, on a poll, vote at 
the annual general meeting.

4. Dematerialised shareholders who have not elected “own name” 
registration in the register of the company through a Central 
Securities Depository Participant (“CSDP”) and who wish to attend the 
annual general meeting, must instruct the CSDP or broker to provide 
them with the necessary authority to attend.

5. Dematerialised shareholders who have not elected “own name” 
registration in the register of the company through a CSDP and 
who are unable to attend, but wish to vote at the annual general 
meeting, must timeously provide their CSDP or broker with their voting 
instructions in terms of the custody agreement entered into between 
that shareholder and the CSDP or broker.

6. A shareholder may insert the name of a proxy or the names of two or 
more alternative proxies of the shareholder’s choice in the space, 
with or without deleting “the chairman of the annual general meeting”. 
The person whose name stands first on the form of proxy and who is 
present at the annual general meeting will be entitled to act as proxy 
to the exclusion of those whose names follow.

7. The completion and lodging of this form will not preclude the relevant 
shareholder from attending the annual general meeting and speaking 
and voting in person thereat to the exclusion of any proxy appointed, 
should such shareholder wish to do so.  In addition to the aforegoing, 
a shareholder may revoke the proxy appointment by (i) cancelling it 
in writing, or making a later inconsistent appointment of a proxy; 
and (ii) delivering a copy of the revocation instrument to the proxy, 
and to the company.

8. The revocation of a proxy appointment constitutes a complete and final 
cancellation of the proxy’s authority to act on behalf of the relevant 
shareholder as of the later of the date –

a. stated in the revocation instrument, if any; or

b. upon which the revocation instrument is delivered to the proxy 
and the relevant company as required in section 58(4)(c)(ii) of 
the Companies Act, 71 of 2008, as amended (“the Companies Act”).

9. Should the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies have been 
delivered to the company, as long as that appointment remains in 
effect, any notice that is required by the Companies Act or the 
company’s Memorandum of Incorporation to be delivered by the company 
to the shareholder must be delivered by the company to –

a. the shareholder, or

b. the proxy or proxies if the shareholder has in writing directed 
the relevant company to do so and has paid any reasonable fee 
charged by the company for doing so.

10. A proxy is entitled to exercise, or abstain from exercising, any 
voting right of the relevant shareholder without direction, except to 
the extent that the Memorandum of Incorporation of the company or the 
instrument appointing the proxy provide otherwise.

11. If the company issues an invitation to shareholders to 
appoint one or more persons named by the company as a proxy, 
or supplies a form of instrument for appointing a proxy – 

a. such invitation must be sent to every shareholder who is entitled 
to receive notice of the meeting at which the proxy is intended 
to be exercised;

b. the company must not require that the proxy appointment be made 
irrevocable; and

c. the proxy appointment remains valid only until the end of the 
relevant meeting at which it was intended to be used, unless 
revoked as contemplated in section 58(5) of the Companies Act.

12. Any alteration or correction made to this form of proxy must be 
initialled by the signatory/ies. A deletion of any printed matter and 
the completion of any blank space(s) need not be signed or initialed.

13. Documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing 
this form of proxy in a representative capacity must be attached to 
this form unless previously recorded by the transfer secretaries of 
the company or waived by the chairman of the annual general meeting.

14. A minor must be assisted by his/her parent/guardian unless the 
relevant documents establishing his/her legal capacity are produced 
or have been registered by the transfer secretaries.

15. A company holding shares in the company that wishes to attend 
and participate at the annual general meeting should ensure that 
a resolution authorising a representative to act is passed by its 
directors. Resolutions authorising representatives in terms of 
section 57(5) of the Companies Act must be lodged with the company’s 
transfer secretaries prior to the annual general meeting.

16. Where there are joint holders of shares any one of such persons may 
vote at any meeting in respect of such shares as if he were solely 
entitled thereto; but if more than one of such joint holders be 
present or represented at the meeting, that one of the said persons 
whose name appears first in the register of shareholders of such 
shares or his proxy, as the case may be shall alone be, shall be 
entitled to vote in respect thereof.

17. On a show of hands, every shareholder of the company present in 
person or represented by proxy shall have one vote only. On a poll a 
shareholder who is present in person or represented by a proxy shall 
be entitled to that proportion of the total votes in the company which 
the aggregate amount of the nominal value of the shares held by him 
bears to the aggregate amount of the nominal value of all the shares 
of the relevant class issued by the company.

18. The chairman of the annual general meeting may reject or accept any 
proxy which is completed and/or received other than in accordance with 
the instructions, provided that he shall not accept a proxy unless he 
is satisfied as to the matter in which a shareholder wishes to vote.

19. A proxy may not delegate his/her authority to act on behalf of the 
shareholder, to another person.

20. A shareholder’s instruction to the proxy must be indicated by the 
insertion of the relevant number of shares to be voted on behalf 
of that shareholder in the appropriate space provided. Failure to 
comply with the above will be deemed to authorise the chairperson 
of the annual general meeting, if the chairperson is the authorised 
proxy, to vote in favour of the resolutions at the annual general 
meeting or other proxy to vote or to abstain from voting at the 
annual general meeting as he/she deems fit, in respect of the shares 
concerned. A shareholder or the proxy is not obliged to use all the 
votes exercisable by the shareholder or the proxy, but the total of 
votes cast in respect whereof abstention is recorded may not exceed 
the total of the votes exercisable by the shareholder or the proxy.

21. It is requested that this form of proxy be lodged or posted or faxed to 
the Transfer Secretaries, Computershare Investor Services Proprietary 
Limited at 70 Marshall Street, Johannesburg or by fax on +27 11 688 
5238, to be received by the company no later than 10:00 on Monday, 13 
January 2014. A quorum for the purposes of considering the resolutions 
shall comprise 25% of all the voting rights that are entitled to be 
exercised by shareholders in respect of each matter to be decided at 
the annual general meeting. In addition, a quorum shall consist of 
three shareholders of the company personally present or represented 
by proxy (and if the shareholder is a body corporate, it must be 
represented) and entitled to vote at the annual general meeting.

22. This form of proxy may be used at any adjournment or postponement of 
the annual general meeting, including any postponement due to a lack 
of quorum, unless withdrawn by the shareholder.

23. The aforegoing notes contain a summary of the relevant provisions of 
section 58 of the Companies Act, as required in terms of that section.

Notes to the form of proxy



Arrowhead Propertes Limited 
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
Company registration number: 2011/000308/06 
JSE share code: AWA 
ISIN code: ZAE000158101 
JSE share code: AWB  
ISIN code: ZAE000158119

Office 206, 2nd Floor, 18 Melrose Boulevard, 
Melrose Arch, 2196 
PO Box 685, Melrose Arch, 2076 
+27 11 010 1000 076 
www.arrowheadproperties.co.za 
info@arrowheadproperties.co.za

Commercial bankers
The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited 
30 Baker Street, Rosebank, 2196 
PO Box 7725, Johannesburg, 2000 
+27 11 636 9111

Independent auditors
Grant Thornton (Jhb) Inc. 
42 Wierda Road West, Wierda Valley, 2196 
Private Bag X 10046, Sandton, 2146 
+27 11 384 8000

Company secretary
Probity Business Services (Pty) Ltd 
2nd Floor, The Mall Offices, 
11 Cradock Avenue, Rosebank, 2196 
PO Box 85392, Emmarentia, 2029 
+27 11 327 7146

Transfer secretaries
Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Ltd 
70 Marshall Street, Johannesburg, 2001 
PO Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107 
+27 11 370 5000

Sponsor

Java Capital Trustees and Sponsors Proprietary 
Limited 
2 Arnold Road, Rosebank, 2196 
PO Box 2087, Parklands, 2121 
+27 11 283 0042

Property manager & independent 
valuer
JHI  
2 Norwich Close, Sandton, 2196 
Private Bag X45, Benmore, 2010 
+27 11 911 8000

Corporate advisor and legal advisor
Java Capital (Pty) Ltd 
2 Arnold Road, Rosebank, 2196 
PO Box 2087, Parklands, 2121 
+27 11 283 0042 

administration
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